
 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011 

Board Meeting Agenda 
August 19, 2020, 6:30 PM 

AMENDED AGENDA 
 

*** VIRTUAL MEETING *** 
 

Public Notice: Pursuant to Governor Inslee’s Stay Home, Stay Healthy Proclamation 20-25 and in 
effort to curtail the spread of the COVID-19 virus, this Board Meeting will be conducted remotely. 
Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate in the meeting remotely, as 
described in more detail below. 
 
To attend the Board Meeting 

• Listen to the meeting LIVE by phone, call: 
+1-510-338-9438 USA Toll / Access code: 126-305-4744# 

 
To provide Public Comment 

• Submit your written Public Comment before 3:00PM (day of meeting), email: 
kellye.mazzoli@bothellwa.gov 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order – 6:30 PM 
 

2. Public Comment – Read Public Comments submitted.  Allow up to 3 minutes/ comment. 
 

3. Consent Agenda        (5 min) 
A. Minutes from February 26, 2020 and June 17, 2020 
B. Vouchers from January 10, 2020 - August 14, 2020 in the amount of $24,138.37 

 
4. Staff Reports        (30 min) 

A. Personnel Introduction – Executive Director, Levy Coordinator 
B. 2020 Workplan Overview: August – December 
C. Personnel Recruitment Update – Records Specialist 
D. Emergency Repairs Update, Brooke Knight NSSC 

 
5. Discussion Items         (60 min) 

A. Consideration of Resolution # R-20-01, appointing an Executive Director 
B. Consideration of Resolution # R-20-02, amending the 2020 Budget 
C. Consideration of Minute Order # MO-20-01, adopting Purchasing Policies 

 
Page 1 of 223



 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011 

 
 

D. Consideration of Minute Order # MO-20-02, reviewing and filing the King County 
Investment Pool Policy dated July 26, 2017; and approving Agreement # A-20-02 
with King County for Cash Management Services; and approving Agreement # A-20-
03 with King County for Investment Services 

E. Consideration of Minute Order # MO-20-03, approving a Facility Upgrade Request to 
add a Food Pantry in the Senior Center 

F. Consideration of Minute Order # MO-20-04, approving Outstanding Repairs 
completed by the Northshore Senior Center and approving necessary Vouchers 

G. Discussion of Amending the NPRSA Bylaws 
H. Consideration of Resolution # R-20-03, authorizing use of digital or electronic 

signature technology 
 
6. Future Meetings 

 
7. Adjourn 

 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA: The preceding is a preliminary agenda of the Northshore Park and Recreation 
Service Area Board. Other items may be added and action taken on matters which do not appear above. 
For additional information, please contact: Kellye Mazzoli at (425) 471-8464. 
 

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS: The Northshore Parks and Recreation Service Area 
 strives to provide accessible meetings for people with disabilities. If special accommodations are required, 

 please contact Kellye Mazzoli at (425) 471-8464. at least three days prior to the meeting. 
 

 
Page 2 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 2 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, NPRSA Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Public Comment 

 
 

   ITEM  
CONSIDERATION: 

This item allows the Board to take comments from the Public.  Recommended 
time is up to 3 minutes/ commenter.   
 
During virtual meetings, Public Comments are submitted in writing no later than 
3:00 PM the day of the meeting, utilizing the method described on the agenda. 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item does not have any direct fiscal impact.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: This item does not have any attachments. 

  
RECOMMENDED  

ACTION: 
At the meeting, the Board should take Public Comment or, if it is a virtual 
meeting, allow each written Public Comment, submitted in accordance with the 
process outlined on the agenda, to be read aloud. 

 
  

 
Page 3 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Consent Item # 3A 

TO: Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: Kellye Mazzoli, NPRSA Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 

DATE: August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: Minutes from February 26, 2020 and June 17, 2020 

 ITEM 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to approve minutes from NPRSA Board meetings held 
on February 26, 2020 and June 17, 2020. 

FISCAL 
IMPACTS: 

This item does not have any direct fiscal impact. 

ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Minutes from February 26, 2020 
Att-2. Minutes from June 17, 2020 

RECOMMENDED 
ACTION: 

Move to approve the NPRSA Board Minutes from February 26, 2020 and June 17, 
2020.  

 
Page 4 of 223



NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
1 

February 26, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 

Call to Order 

Chairman James McNeal called the meeting at Northshore Senior Center to order at 6:30 pm. 

Meeting Attendees 

Present were NPRSA Chairman James McNeal, NPRSA Board members Tom Agnew, Elaine Cook, and Joe 
Marshall. Board member Kathy Lambert joined us by telephone. 

Also present were:  
John Dolin, Northshore Senior Center Board President 
Suzanne Greathouse, Northshore Senior Center Board Vice President 
Brooke Knight, Northshore Senior Center Executive Director 
Kellye Mazzoli, Assistant City Manager, City of Bothell 
Wes Phillips, NPRSA Temporary Executive Director 
Michael Tabor, NPRSA Administrative Assistant 
Camille Tabor, CPA 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment 

Approval of Meeting Minutes 

Tom Agnew motioned that the minutes of January 22, 2020 be approved, Joe Marshall seconded. The 
motion carried unanimously.  

Discussion Items 

Admin Update - sign vouchers 

a. From Inslee Best for legal services, $1,945
b. From the City of Bothell for reimbursement for intern Marco Dorado’s services, $5,000
c. ILA billing has been sent out for 2020.

James requested that agenda packets need to be prepared before the meeting with all 
necessary documentation for Board member review. James also asked for verification that 
there is no further attorney work in process now. 

 
Page 5 of 223



NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
2 

1. Evaluate and review responses to the request made by the NPRSA Board to Member
Agencies to seek an Expression of Interest in contracting the staffing services necessary
to facilitate the renovation and repair of the Northshore Senior Center as approved by
the Board at the January 22, 2020 meeting.

a. The only affirmative response is from the City of Bothell, provided a letter of
interest to explore what the city can provide; possibly records retention and 
management, project management, HR services, facilities management, etc.
A contract would be negotiated, then proposed to the Board.

b. Elaine Cook motioned that the City of Bothell prepare a proposal to present to
the NPRSA Board, Tom Agnew seconded, the motion carried unanimously.

There was also a brief discussion about why the loan from King County never happened.   
The condition to be able to get a loan from King County was contingent upon having a 
contract executed with DoC (Dept. of Commerce).  We only had an appropriation, not a 
contract, because we would have needed to modify the use of funds, perform a project 
readiness survey, and complete a number of other steps necessary for the loan to be 
provided. 

2. Michael Tabor’s contract was extended to April 30, 2020. Elaine Cook moved to extend
the contract, Tom Agnew seconded, the motion carried unanimously.

3. Regarding the renewal of the Northshore NPRSA Contract No. 2016-01 that expires on 
December 31, 2021.  There was a discussion about reading and reviewing the old
contract in preparation for further discussion and action planning.  Wes & Brooke
agreed to jointly review responsibilities. 

4. Reimbursement from NPRSA for funds spent by NSC for repairs. Brooke listed a number
of repairs that have been performed that it was thought the NPRSA had agreed to pay
for.

5. Review necessary steps to complete the NPRSA annual report for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2019.  The annual report will be filed by the due date of May 31, 2020 by
Michael.

 
Page 6 of 223



NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
3 

6. Resolution to approve King County Investment Pool Agreement & King County Cash 
Management Services Agreement – Wes will be drawing up a new resolution for the
next meeting.

7. The EMG presentation was not made official last meeting. Kenmore had a presentation,
but the NPRSA Board has not.  Kathy Lambert moved that pursuant to the EMG contract
with NPRSA, they were to present to this Board their findings, and we request they do 
so. Seconded by Elaine Cook, the motion carried unanimously.

8. Joe Marshall would like to discuss funding for a public pool.  For next meeting, Joe will
have more information to present; Kenmore did meet with the school district, there
could possibly be five entities funding a new Aquatic Center.

Next Meeting Date 

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday March 18, 2020. 

New Business 

Kellye will set up an Outlook calendar invite for everyone to respond to in order to better track 
who will be attending upcoming meetings. 

Adjournment 

Elaine Cook motioned that the meeting be adjourned, Tom Agnew seconded, the motion carried 
unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:38 PM. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Michael Tabor 

 
Page 7 of 223



 
 

NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
  1 

June 17, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 

 
*** VIRTUAL MEETING *** 

 
Public Notice: Pursuant to Governor Inslee’s Stay Home, Stay Healthy Proclamation 20-25 and in 
effort to curtail the spread of the COVID-19 virus, this Board Meeting was conducted remotely. We 
encouraged members of the public to attend and participate in the meeting remotely, as described 
in more detail below. 
  
To attend the Board Meeting  
• Listen to the meeting LIVE by phone, call:  

+1-510-338-9438 USA Toll / Access code: 126-952-9224#  
 
To provide Public Comment  
• Submit your written Public Comment before 3:00PM (day of meeting), email:  

Wes.Phillips@NPRSA.onmicrosoft.com  
 

 

1. Call to Order 

Chairman James McNeal called the virtual meeting to order at 6:30 pm.  

Meeting Attendees 

Present 
NPRSA Chairman James McNeal 
NPRSA Board members Tom Agnew, Elaine Cook, Joe Marshall, Kathy Lambert, Jared Mead 
  
Wes Phillips, NPRSA Interim Executive Director 
Kellye Mazzoli, Assistant City Manager, City of Bothell 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator, City of Bothell 
John Dolin, Northshore Senior Center Board President 
Suzanne Greathouse, Northshore Senior Center Board Vice President 
Brooke Knight, Northshore Senior Center Executive Director 
Randy Busch, Northshore Senior Center Board Appointed Community Representative 
 
Absent: 
NPRSA Board member Rod Dembowski 
 
Michael Tabor, NPRSA Administrative Assistant 
Camille Tabor, CPA 

 
 

 
Page 8 of 223



NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
2 

2. Public Comment

Wes Phillips reported that he did not receive any public comment by the deadline for the meeting.

3. Approval of Meeting Minutes

Kathy Lambert motioned that the minutes of January 22, 2020 be approved, Tom Agnew seconded. 
The motion passed unanimously (6-0).  

4. Discussion Items
a. Consideration of an Interlocal Agreement with City of Bothell for Administrative Services of

the NPRSA.

ATTACHMENT 4A: Interim Executive Director Recommendation, Memorandum, 
Draft Interlocal Agreement, and Estimated Costs 2020-2025 

Kathy Lambert motioned to approve an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Bothell for 
Administrative Services, Tom Agnew seconded.  The motion passed with 5 in favor and 1 
dissenting, Joe Marshall (5-1).   

b. Consideration of a Contract Extension with Michael Tabor for Administrative Services
through July 31, 2020.

ATTACHMENT 4B: Interim Executive Director Recommendation 

Tom Agnew motioned to extend the contract of Michael Tabor until July 31, 2020, Joe 
Marshall seconded.  The motion passed unanimously (6-0).   

5. Administrative Updates
a. Vouchers
b. Resolutions

Interim Executive Director Wes Phillips reported that there were currently 3 outstanding 
invoices/vouchers and that he was awaiting the contract extension from Michael Tabor in order 
to process payment. 

6. New Business
a. Brooke Knight reported on repairs in progress on the Senior Center facility due to a sewer

line backup.  Due to the nature of the repairs and to protect life and property, she was
moving forward with the necessary repairs.  She requested that the Board consider

 
Page 9 of 223



NPRSA c/o Northshore Senior Center - 10201 E. Riverside Drive, Bothell, WA 98011
3 

reimbursing the Northshore Senior Center for these repairs since they were believed to be 
the result of a blockage caused by a break in the sewer line. 

Kathy Lambert motioned to declare an emergency, waiving bidding and purchasing 
requirements, and funding the emergency repairs related to the sewer backup issue, 
seconded by Elaine Cook.  Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

7. Next Meeting Date

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday July 15, 2020.

8. Adjournment

Kathy Lambert motioned that the meeting be adjourned, Jared Mead seconded. The motion
passed unanimously (6-0).

The meeting was adjourned at 7:57 PM.

Respectfully submitted, 
Kellye Mazzoli 

 
Page 10 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Consent Item # 3B 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, NPRSA Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Vouchers from January 10, 2020 - August 14, 2020 in the amount of $24,138.37 

 
 

   ITEM  
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to approve vouchers for expenses invoiced between 
January 10, 2020 and August 14, 2020 in the amount of $24,138.37. 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
These items are budgeted in the 2020.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Voucher Packet 1 

Att-2. Voucher Packet 2 
  

RECOMMENDED  
ACTION: 

Move to approve vouchers for expenses invoiced between January 10, 2020 and 
August 14, 2020 and authorize payments in the amount of $24,138.37. 

 
  

 
Page 11 of 223



 
Page 12 of 223



 
Page 13 of 223



 
Page 14 of 223



 
Page 15 of 223



 
Page 16 of 223



 
Page 17 of 223



 
Page 18 of 223



 
Page 19 of 223



 
Page 20 of 223



 
Page 21 of 223



 
Page 22 of 223



 
Page 23 of 223



 
Page 24 of 223



 
Page 25 of 223



 
Page 26 of 223



 
Page 27 of 223



 
Page 28 of 223



 
Page 29 of 223



 
Page 30 of 223



 
Page 31 of 223



 
Page 32 of 223



 
Page 33 of 223



 
Page 34 of 223



 
Page 35 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 4 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, NPRSA Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Staff Reports 

 
 

   ITEM  
CONSIDERATION: 

This item allows the Board to receive reports and updates on topics from Staff.  
From time to time the Northshore Senior Center may also give reports or updates 
as appropriate. 
 
For this meeting, there will be reports or updates on the following topics: 
A. Personnel Introduction – Executive Director, Levy Coordinator  
B. 2020 Workplan Overview: August – December  
C. Personnel Recruitment Update – Records Specialist  
D. Emergency Repairs Update, Brooke Knight NSSC  
 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item does not have any direct fiscal impact.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: This item does not have any attachments. 

  
RECOMMENDED  

ACTION: 
At the meeting, the Board should receive reports and updates from Staff on the 
topics proposed.  Typically, these items will not require direct action on behalf of 
the Board. 

 
  

 
Page 36 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5A 
 

   
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director (Presenter) 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Resolution # R-20-01, appointing an Executive Director 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider a Resolution appointing an Executive 
Director of the NPRSA.  If approved, it will formally end the current term of 
Interim Executive Director, Wes Phillips and formally begin the term of Kellye 
Mazzoli as Executive Director. 

  
HISTORY: At the November 2019 meeting, the Board appointed Wes Phillips as its Interim 

Executive Director.  He has served in that capacity to-date.  Furthermore, at the 
June 2020 meeting, the Board approved an Interlocal Agreement with the City of 
Bothell for Administrative Services.  The Bothell City Council on July 7, 2020 
agreed to provide the services and subsequently, staff members were identified 
to provide agreed upon services.  Following this action, Assistant City Manager, 
Kellye Mazzoli, was identified as the specific staff member to serve in the 
Executive Director role. 

  
DISCUSSION: As part of the terms of the recently adopted Interlocal Agreement for 

Administrative Services, the City has the responsibility and authority to 
determine which staff members will serve the NPRSA.  Based upon experience 
and familiarity with the NPRSA, the City identified Assistant City Manager, Kellye 
Mazzoli, as best to serve in the Executive Director role.  Of her position, 50% will 
be dedicated to establishing and executing administrative functions on behalf of 
the NPRSA. 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item does not have a financial impact. 

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Resolution # R-20-01, appointing an Executive Director 

  

 
Page 37 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5A 
 

   
 

RECOMMENDED  
ACTION: 

Move to approve Resolution # R-20-01, appointing Kellye Mazzoli as Executive 
Director of the NPRSA. 

 

  

 
Page 38 of 223



 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION # R-20-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE NORTHSHORE PARKS AND 
RECREATION SERVICE AREA, WASHINGTON REMOVING WESLEY 
PHILLIPS AS THE INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND NAMING 
KELLYE MAZZOLI EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. 
 

  
 

 
WHEREAS, Wesley Phillips has served as the Interim Executive Director since his 

appointment by the Board in November 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board deems it appropriate and in the best interest of the NPRSA 

to remove Wesley Phillips as the Interim Executive Director and appoint Kellye Mazzoli 
as the Executive Director. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF THE NPRSA, WASHINGTON, DOES 

RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section  1.  The Board appoints Kellye Mazzoli to the office of Executive Director 

of the NPRSA for as long as she is employed by the Administering Agency to the NPRSA 
in such role, commencing on August 19, 2020.  

 
Section 2.  The City Clerk is authorized to make necessary corrections to this 

resolution including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, 
references, resolution numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any references 
thereto. 

 
PASSED this ___________ day of ______________________, 2020. 

 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
  

JAMES MCNEAL 
CHAIR 

 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
  

 
Page 39 of 223



 Page 2 of 2 

LAURA HATHAWAY 
CITY CLERK 

 
 
 
FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:    
PASSED BY THE NPRSA BOARD:    
RESOLUTION # R-20-01 

 
Page 40 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5B 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director (Presenter) 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Resolution # R-20-02, amending the 2020 Budget 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider a Resolution amending the 2020 Budget to 
include expenditures the Board has approved separately. 

  
HISTORY: DATE  ACTION  

NOVEMBER 20, 2019  NPRSA Board adopts the 2020 Budget (R-19-02)  

JUNE 17, 2020  
NPRSA Board approves Interlocal Agreement with City of 
Bothell for Administrative Services 

 
At the November 20, 2019 Meeting the Board approved the annual budget for 
2020. The adopted 2020 budget included the voter-approved levy revenues, 
projected expenditures for capital outlay, and an estimated $100,000 for 
administration of the levy. At the June 17, 2020 meeting, the Board entered into 
an agreement for administrative services with the City of Bothell, totaling 
$195,000 in 2020.  

  
DISCUSSION: The Board has entered into an agreement with the City of Bothell for 

Administrative Services totaling $195,000 in 2020, which is $95,000 more than 
what was estimated for administration in the adopted 2020 budget. In order to 
make the payment agreed to by both parties, the Board must authorize the 
payment by amending the 2020 budget to include this new expenditure. The 
expenditure would be covered with levy funds. See Attachment 1 for the 
Resolution amending the 2020 Budget. 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
Approval of this resolution increases the NPRSA expenditures for Administrative 
Services to $195,000 in 2020, to be paid for with levy funds.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Resolution # R-20-02, amending the 2020 Budget 

  

 
Page 41 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5B 
 

RECOMMENDED  
ACTION: 

Move to approve Resolution # R-20-02, amending the 2020 Budget to include 
expenditures for Administrative Services to total $195,000. 

 

  

 
Page 42 of 223



 
 

10201 E. RIVERSIDE DRIVE 
BOTHELL, WASHINGTON 98011-3708 
 

 
RESOLUTION # R-20-02 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2020 BUDGET 
 
WHEREAS, State law, Chapter 35A.34 RCW provides for the biennial adoption of the NPRSA’s 
budget and provides procedures for filing of the proposed budget, deliberations, public 
hearings, final fixing, and any subsequent adjustments to the budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2020 budget was adopted for all funds of the NPRSA including General, Bond, 
and Construction funds,  
 
WHEREAS, budget development requires staff to make significant predictions about revenues 
and expenditures and it is not uncommon for budget amendments to be subsequently required 
to align actual results with the predictions made during budget development, 
 
WHEREAS, the NPRSA has since entered into an interlocal agreement with the City of Bothell 
for administrative services totaling $195,000 in 2020 for staff and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, a budget amendment is required to account for the expenditure listed in the 
agreement, which is $95,000 more than what was originally forecasted for administration. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE NORTHSHORE PARKS AND 
RECREATION SERVICE AREA, WASHINGTON, THAT: 
 
The adopted 2020 budget is hereby amended as set forth in the table below, which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as set forth in full, effective immediately. 
 
 

Fund No. Fund Name Adopted ’20 
Revenue 

Adopted ’20 
Expenditure 

Amended ’20 
Revenue 

Amended ’20 
Expenditure 

100 General $1,901,000 $1,517,500 $1,901,000 $1,612,500 
 
 
 
ADOPTED AT A MEETING OF THE NPRSA BOARD THIS 19th DAY OF AUGUST 2020. 
 
 
      
 _______________________________________ 
         

 
Page 43 of 223



 
 

10201 E. RIVERSIDE DRIVE 
BOTHELL, WASHINGTON 98011-3708 
 

 
      
 _______________________________________ 
 
 
      
 _______________________________________ 
 
 
      
 _______________________________________ 
 
 
      
 _______________________________________ 
 
 

 
Page 44 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5C 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator (Presenter) 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Minute Order # MO-20-01, adopting Purchasing Policies 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider if the Board should adopt the proposed 
Purchasing Policy. If approved, this would establish the procedures necessary for 
the NPRSA to comply with state laws governing the public procurement process.  

  
HISTORY: DATE ACTION 

JUNE 17, 2020 NPRSA Board approves Interlocal Agreement with City 
of Bothell to provide Administrative Services. 

JULY 7, 2020 Bothell City Council approves Interlocal Agreement 
with NPRSA to provide Administrative Services. 

 
On June 17, 2020, the Board approved an Interlocal Agreement with City of 
Bothell where the City of Bothell agreed to provide Administrative Services to 
the NPRSA. The objective is to support the NPRSA in implementing its voter-
approved levy for capital repairs to the buildings under its ownership. A portion 
of the scope of work includes establishing the policies and procedures required 
by State law to procure and contract vendors to effectuate the repairs to the 
buildings.  
 
In accordance with the scope of work agreed to by both parties, staff have 
prepared a purchasing policy for the Board to consider adopting. See Attachment 
1 for the proposed policy. 

  
DISCUSSION: Adopting an agency-specific purchasing policy is a method to ensure compliance 

with state laws pertaining to procurement and contracting and align the agency 
with industry-wide best practices. The purchasing policy can also be thought of 
as an accountability tool – a way to maintain the public’s trust in government by 
following open, competitive, and well-documented purchasing and contracting 
procedures.  
 

 
Page 45 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5C 
 

The first chapter in the proposed purchasing policy details a code of ethics 
outlining the NPRSA’s commitment to providing a fair, ethical, and accountable 
local government for the residents and businesses served by the NPRSA. The 
following chapters describe the procurement process generally, then provide 
additional details on the specific requirements for different types of purchases 
and at varying cost levels. Generally speaking, competition requirements 
increase as the total amount of the contract or project increases. 
 
There are six steps to the procurement process: 

1. Define the need – what type of purchase must be made?  
2. Determine the cost – what is the estimated total cost, from beginning to 

end?  
3. Identify the solicitation process – what process must be used to ensure 

competition?  
4. Determine signing authority – who has authority to enter into an 

agreement on behalf of the agency?  
5. Assess liability – is a contract or other items necessary to protect the 

agency?  
6. Administer the contract (if needed) – what are the responsibilities of each 

party?  
 
Staff will administer steps #1-3 above for purchases that the Board has already 
approved in the adopted budget. Purchases outside of what is included in the 
budget will be brought to the Board for consideration in a Budget Amendment.  
 
Once the purchase is approved, either through the budget adoption or 
amendment, and staff have administered the procurement process, staff will 
then prepare the contract. The proposed policy states if the contract amount is 
under $100,000 the Executive Director may approve and execute the contract. If 
over $100,000, the Board must consider authorizing the Executive Director to 
enter into the agreement. These are healthy checks and balances between the 
Board, staff, and potential vendors to ensure the ultimate goal – ethical and 
effective spending of public funds. 
 
Contract Approval Levels 

· Under $100,000: Executive Director may approve, unless the total 
exceeds previously approved budget appropriations, in which case the 
Board will be brought a budget amendment for consideration. 

· Over $100,000: NPRSA Board must authorize entering into the 
agreement. 

  

 
Page 46 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5C 
 

FISCAL 
IMPACTS: 

This item does not have any direct fiscal impacts.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. NPRSA Purchasing Policy 

  
RECOMMENDED  

ACTION: 
Move to approve Minute Order # MO-20-01, adopting the proposed Purchasing 
Policy as the official Purchasing Policy for the NPRSA, effective immediately.  

 
  

 
Page 47 of 223



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PURCHASING POLICY 
 

Adopted by the Board of the Northshore Parks and Recreation Service Area 

August 19, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 
Page 48 of 223



Page 2 of 18 
 
 

 

Contents 
Introduction and Code of Ethics .................................................................................................. 3 

Guide to Procurement ............................................................................................................... 4 

Types of Purchases ................................................................................................................. 4 

Determining Total Cost............................................................................................................ 6 

Solicitation Methods ............................................................................................................... 6 

The Competitive Process ............................................................................................................ 7 

Exceptions to Competition ....................................................................................................... 7 

Cooperative Purchasing ........................................................................................................... 8 

Determining the Solicitation Method......................................................................................... 9 

Invitation to Bid Procedures ....................................................................................................10 

Bid Specifications ...............................................................................................................10 

Advertising ........................................................................................................................10 

Receiving and Opening Bids .................................................................................................11 

Awarding the Contract: The Lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder ....................................12 

Records Management ............................................................................................................13 

Vendor Appeals.....................................................................................................................13 

Contract Approval and Management ..........................................................................................14 

Grants Management ..............................................................................................................14 

Insurance .............................................................................................................................14 

Contract Approval .................................................................................................................15 

Change Orders ......................................................................................................................15 

Public Works Contracts...........................................................................................................15 

Surplus of NPRSA Property ........................................................................................................16 

Appendix.................................................................................................................................17 

Appendix A – How to Buy Chart ...............................................................................................17 

Reference Material ................................................................................................................18 

 

 

  

 
Page 49 of 223



Page 3 of 18 
 
 

 

Introduction and Code of Ethics 
 
This document intends to identify best procurement practices for the NPRSA that are compliant 
with Washington State laws governing public procurement. The process of selecting vendors, 
making a purchase, and managing contracts should be subject to the highest ethical standards to 
ensure accountability in the use of public funds. This document supports an internal control 
environment where efficient, ethical, uniform, and timely purchasing procedures aim to attain 
the highest value and quality of goods and services possible. An open, fair, documented, and 
competitive purchasing process is to be used whenever reasonable and possible. The processes 
set forth herein also promote clear communication and effective relationships between the 
NRPSA and vendors and contractors. Additional internal controls are documented in the NPRSA 
Procedure Manual.  

The residents and businesses served by the NPRSA are entitled to have fair, ethical and 
accountable local government that continually earns the public’s full confidence. The effective 
functioning of government therefore requires that:  

1) Public officials, both elected and appointed, and staff comply with the laws and policies 
affecting the operations of government;  

2) Public officials and staff be independent, impartial and fair in their judgment and actions;  
3) Public office be used for the public good, not for personal gain; and  
4) Public deliberations and processes be conducted openly, unless legally confidential, in an 

atmosphere of respect and civility. 

 

 

James McNeal | Board Chair | James.McNeal@bothellwa.gov  

 

 

Kellye Mazzoli | Executive Director | Kellye.Mazzoli@bothellwa.gov  

 

 

Carly Joerger | Levy Coordinator | Carly.Joerger@bothellwa.gov     

 
Page 50 of 223



Page 4 of 18 
 
 

 

Guide to Procurement 
 
As a general guide, the procurement process follows six steps: 

1) Define the need – what type of purchase must be made? 
2) Determine the cost – what is the estimated total cost, from beginning to end? 
3) Identify the solicitation process – what process must be used to ensure competition? 
4) Determine signing authority – who has authority to enter into an agreement on behalf of 

the agency? 
5) Assess liability – is a contract or other items necessary to protect the agency? 
6) Administer the contract (if needed) – what are the responsibilities of each party? 

This chapter provides a broad overview of steps one through four listed above. 
 

Types of Purchases 
There are three broad categories of purchases: supplies and equipment, services, and public 
works. Within services, there are four subcategories: general, professional, architectural and 
engineering, and technology software and services. See Appendix A ‘How to Buy’ Chart for a 
visual summary, including contract approval thresholds.  

 
Supplies and Equipment 
Defined as tangible items which are manufactured and moveable at the time of purchase. 

· Examples: office supplies, auto parts, food, janitorial supplies.  
· Solicitation Method: Invitation to Quote (ITQ), Invitation to Bid (ITB). 
· Agreement Template: Product Services 

 
Services 
Includes the time, labor, or effort of a human being. There are 4 service subcategories: 

1. General Services 
Defined as services rendered on a routine and repetitive basis, performed under contract 
to service, check or replace items that are not broken, performed under contract to 
maintain an asset, or other services rendered that do not require a professional license 
or certification.  

· Examples: building maintenance, landscape maintenance, automotive services, 
instructors, entertainers.  

· Solicitation Method: ITQ or ITB.  
· Agreement Template: Purchased Services 

 
Page 51 of 223



Page 5 of 18 
 
 

 

 
2. Professional Services 

Services which provide professional or technical expertise to accomplish a specific study, 
project, task, or other work statement. The primary service is mental or intellectual and 
requires specialized knowledge, professional licensing and/or certification. 

· Examples: accounting, auditing, bond or insurance brokerage, consulting, 
facilitation, legal services, physicians, graphic artists, real estate appraisal or title 
abstracts, relocation assistance, and soils testing. 

· Solicitation Method: Direct Negotiation, or Request for Proposal (RFP) and/or 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ). 

· Agreement Template: Professional Services 
 

3. Architectural, Engineering, and Design Services 
Contracts are awarded based on best of value criteria, not price. These services must be 
acquired under the procedures outlined in RCW 39.80. 

· Examples: Engineers, land surveyors, architects, etc. 
· Solicitation Method: RFQ 
· Agreement Template: Professional Services 

 
4. Technology Software or Services 

Technology hardware or software system or maintenance agreement. 
· Examples: data storage hardware, PCs, laptops, digital signature online 

subscriptions, services for upgrades and/or implementation. 
· Solicitation Method: Competitive Negotiation using an RFP, per RCW 39.04.270  
· Agreement Template: Professional Services or Vendor’s agreements 

 

Public Works 
Defined as all work, construction, alteration, repair, or improvement other than ordinary 
maintenance, executed at the cost of the NPRSA. Ordinary maintenance is considered work not 
performed by contract and that is either 1) performed on a regular basis to service, check or 
replace items that are not broken or 2) required to maintain an asset so that repair does not 
become necessary.  

· Examples: demolition, remodeling, renovation, road construction, building construction, 
utilities construction, and way-finding signs. 

· Solicitation Method: Direct Negotiation, Small Works Process, or ITB 
· Agreement Template: Large or Small Public Works Agreement 

 
Page 52 of 223



Page 6 of 18 
 
 

 

 

Determining Total Cost 
The total cost of the good, service, or public work determines which solicitation method to use, 
who has authority to approve the purchase and/or contract, and may influence the need for a 
contract. Considerations for determining total cost include: 

· Costs for taxes, freight, and installation. 
· The total cost for the exact quantity that can be reasonably projected. 
· The total accumulated cost for all phases if a project or program is multi-phased. 

 
Trade-in value is not part of total cost, but can be used to determine the lowest bid. Additionally, 
beware of bid-splitting: If one item being purchased requires another item to “make a whole”, 
the total accumulated costs of the two items (when they can reasonably be projected) should be 
considered together as the total cost, unless the two items are not available from a single 
supplier. 

 

Solicitation Methods 
There are several methods for soliciting the best value and quality of a good, service, or public 
work. The main methods are requesting quotes, bids, proposals, or qualifications. Other methods 
include direct negotiation (no competition required), competitive negotiation (only for 
technology software and services per RCW 39.04.270), and using the small works roster (to solicit 
public works quotes from a roster of vendors). The main methods are described further: 

Invitation to Quote (ITQ): potential vendors are asked to provide informal quotes, in writing or 
verbally. The contract is awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  

Invitation to Bid (ITB): potential vendors are asked to submit bids demonstrating value and 
quality in response to the agency’s criteria and bid specifications. The contract is awarded to the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  

Request for Proposals (RFP): consultants submit qualifications (if they have not already) and a 
proposed scope of services, schedule, and budget in response to the RFP’s criteria and 
specifications. Selection is based on qualifications and price, which may be negotiated. 

Request for Qualifications (RFQ): consultants submit non-cost proposals (Statements of 
Qualifications or SOQ) in response to the RFQ’s criteria and specifications. Selection is based on 
competence only, then project scope and budget negotiations are initiated.  

The table below compares and contrasts the distinguishing characteristics between bids/quotes, 
RFP, and RFQ processes.  

 
Page 53 of 223



Page 7 of 18 
 
 

 

 
       BID/QUOTE    RFP        RFQ 

AWARD Lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder 

Best, most 
advantageous 
proposer 

Best, most 
advantageous 
proposer 

CONSIDERATION Price only Qualifications and 
price 

Qualifications only 

PROCESS Bids are formal, 
Quotes are informal 

Formal but may be 
more complex 

Formal but may be 
more complex 

EVALUATION Easy Staff identify 
evaluation criteria 
and significance 

Staff identify 
evaluation criteria 
and significance 

NEGOTIATION Non-negotiable May be negotiable Negotiable 

 
 

The Competitive Process 
 
This chapter provides additional details about how the NPRSA ensures competition in 
purchasing by covering several topics:  

· exceptions to competition, 
· the “piggy-backing” cooperative purchasing option, 
· how to determine which solicitation method to use, 
· requirements for formal bidding, 
· expectations for records management, and  
· the vendor appeals process. 

 

Exceptions to Competition 
Situations may occur when competition among multiple vendors is not practical. Criteria for 
determining eligibility to waive competition requirements is described in RCW 39.04.280 and 

 
Page 54 of 223



Page 8 of 18 
 
 

 

summarized here in three categories: sole source purchases, emergencies, and auctions and 
purchasing from other agencies. 

 
Sole Source Purchase 
Purchases can be made from a sole source vendor without soliciting other quotes or bids when 
there are special market conditions that result in one appropriate source capable of supplying 
the good or service in a timely fashion. This includes purchases of insurance or bonds and may 
include items of a special design, shape or manufacture that matches or fits with existing 
equipment, inventory, systems, programs, or services. Written documentation demonstrating 
the appropriateness of a sole source purchase must be submitted to the Executive Director in 
advance of the purchase, and may be subject to Legal review. In non-emergency situations, the 
contract and basis for the exception from competitive procurement shall be recorded and open 
to public inspection immediately after the purchase. 

 
Emergency Purchase 
An emergency is considered to be unforeseen circumstances beyond the NPRSA’s control that 
present a real, immediate threat to the proper performance of essential functions, or that will 
likely result in material loss to property, bodily injury, or loss of life if immediate action is not 
taken.  If an emergency exists, the Executive Director may declare an emergency situation exists, 
waive competition requirements, and award, on behalf of the NPRSA, contracts necessary to 
address the emergency situation. Written finding of the existence of an emergency must be made 
and entered into the public record no later than two weeks following the award of the contract.  

 
Auctions and Purchasing from Other Agencies 
RCW 39.30.045 allows for the purchase of any supplies or equipment at auctions rather than 
through competitive bidding, if the items can be obtained at a competitive price.  RCW 39.33.010 
allows for the purchase of surplus property from other governmental agencies without regard to 
bid laws.  

 

Cooperative Purchasing 
As outlined in RCW 39.34.030 NPRSA may join with other governmental agencies for the 
purchase of supplies, equipment, or services. This is done by entering into a written 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (also known as an “interlocal 
agreement”). By using another municipalities bid/contract, the NPRSA is, in essence, 
“piggybacking” off of their competitive process thus eliminating the need to perform its own 
competitive process. However, prior to making the cooperative purchase, it is the responsibility 

 
Page 55 of 223



Page 9 of 18 
 
 

 

of the NPRSA to ensure the bid or contract used by another agency meets the NPRSA’s own 
competitive process requirements. Confirm the following before “piggybacking”: 

· Has the NPRSA signed a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with an entity that 
specifically authorizes other entities to piggy-back? 

· Has the vendor confirmed they will honor the pricing and the contract has not expired? 
· Did the agency who made the original purchase follow the same solicitation methods as 

required by the NPRSA’s procurement policy? 
· Was the bid or solicitation notice posted on a web site maintained by the agency? 

 

Determining the Solicitation Method 
The estimated cost of the purchase and type of purchase are factors in determining how much 
competition is required. See Appendix A ‘How to Buy’ Chart for a visual summary.  

 
Supplies and Equipment and General Services 

· Under $10,000: Direct Negotiation, competitive pricing encouraged. 
· $10,000 - $50,000: Invitation to Quote, three quotes required. 
· $50,000 - $200,000: Invitation to Bid. 
· Over $200,000: Invitation to Bid, advertisement required.   

 
Technology Software and Services 
Competitive negotiation is permitted, using the RFP process.  

 
Professional Services 
Competition is not required. However, the Request for Qualifications and Request for Proposal 
process may assist in determining the best value and quality.  

 
Architectural and Engineering Services 
Consultants must be selected based on qualifications only, using the Request for Qualifications 
process as outlined in RCW 39.80. Advertising is required. 

 
Public Works 

· Under $10,000: Direct Negotiation, competitive pricing encouraged. 

 
Page 56 of 223



Page 10 of 18 
 
 

 

· $10,000 - $350,000: Public works in this range may be purchased using the Small Works 
Roster (see below) or using the Invitation to Bid process with advertisement required for 
projects over $200,000. If using the Small Works Roster: 

o $10,000 - $50,000: Invitation to Quote, three quotes required. 
o $50,000 - $250,000: Invitation to Quote, five quotes required, equitably 

distributed among the roster.  
o $250,000 - $350,000: Invitation to Quote, five quotes required, notify remainder 

of roster. 
· Over $350,000: Invitation to Bid, advertisement required. 

 

Invitation to Bid Procedures 
This section outlines the procedures required for formal bidding, or the Invitation to Bid (ITB) process. 
Steps include writing clear bid specifications, advertising, receiving and opening bids, and determining 
the lowest responsive and responsible bidder to award the contract.  

 
Bid Specifications 
Bid specifications should incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical 
requirements for the material, product, or service to be purchased. Such descriptions should not 
contain features that unduly restrict competition, while also provide enough specificity that 
vendors have the opportunity to make a bid that provides the best value and quality.  

When it is impractical or uneconomical to make clear and accurate description requirements, a 
“brand name or equal” description may be used. The responsibility of demonstrating to the 
NPRSA’s satisfaction that a product is “equal” to that specified shall be on the vendor proposing 
the substitution. Requests for approval of substitutions must be made with sufficient time to 
allow the NPRSA to adequately review the proposal, including time for vendors to respond to 
questions and requests for additional information or clarification. NPRSA has no obligation to 
accept proposed substitutions. Acceptance of a substitute product proposed as an “equal” to 
that specified will be made in writing. If this acceptance occurs prior to the bid, other bidders will 
be notified to the extent practical.  

 
Advertising 
Providing public notice of bidding opportunities increases opportunity for competition. 
Advertising on the NPRSA website and in the established newspaper of record is required when 
purchasing supplies and equipment, general services, and public works (when not using the Small 
Works Roster) over $200,000. Post the notice with sufficient time to allow prospective vendors 
to submit bids. Best practices for advertisements suggest including the following information: 

 
Page 57 of 223



Page 11 of 18 
 
 

 

· Title of the project 
· Nature and scope of the work 
· Where contract documents (plans, specifications) may be obtained 
· Cost to obtain a set of contract documents 
· Place, date, and time that bids are due 
· If for a public work, state that a bid bond must accompany the bid 
· Statements that the NPRSA retains the right to reject any or all bids, and to waive minor 

irregularities in the bidding process 

See the NPRSA Procedure Manual for instructions on posting on the website and advertising in 
the established newspaper. 

 
Receiving and Opening Bids 
Bids will be submitted as specified in the invitation for bid by the appointed date and time listed 
in the invitation. Each bid will be date and time stamped as it is received. Late bids will not be 
accepted. If the bid is a sealed bid, all qualified bids will be opened and read aloud publicly at the 
appointed time.  

Staff shall not inform a contractor of the terms or amount of any other contractor’s bid for the 
same project prior to the bid opening date and time. Once bids have been submitted (and 
opened, if the bids are sealed), the NPRSA may not negotiate with bidders.  

In addition to responding the bid specifications, bids must also include bid security, a non-
collusion affidavit, statement of compliance with wage payment laws, and for public works 
projects over $1 million, a roster of sub-contractors. 

1. Bid Security 
Bid security is required for all competitive bidding for public works and must be submitted 
in the bid package. Security shall be in the form of a bond with a value of at least 5% of 
the amount of the bid, provided by a surety company that is authorized to do business in 
Washington State, or the equivalent in cash or certified check. Noncompliance will result 
in rejection of the bid. If a bidder is permitted to withdraw a bid before award, the bid 
security shall be returned.  
 
Bid security shall be required on bids for materials, supplies, and equipment only if it is 
determined to be necessary by the Executive Director.  

 
2. Non-Collusion Affidavit 

 
Page 58 of 223



Page 12 of 18 
 
 

 

Each bidder shall be required to warrant that their bid is genuine, and that they have not 
entered into collusion with other bidders, by submitting with their bid an executed and 
notarized affidavit on a form approved through legal consultation.  

 
3. Statement of Compliance with Wage Payment Laws 

RCW 39.04.350 requires that every bidder on a public works project must submit, as part 
of their bid package, a sworn statement that they have not willfully violated wage 
payment laws within the past three years in order to be considered a responsible bidder.  

 
4. Roster of Sub-Contractors 

RCW 39.30.060 specifies that in order for their bid to be considered responsive, every 
bidder for a public works contract of over $1 million must submit a roster of all 
subcontractors that will be used for heating, ventilation and air conditioning, plumbing, 
and electrical work.  

 
Awarding the Contract: The Lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder 
The contract must be awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder who meets the 
requirements and criteria included in the bid specifications. If the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder is not selected, the NPRSA must reject all bids. An invitation for bids may be 
cancelled. Additionally, the NPRSA may, at its sole discretion, choose to reject all bids. 

A responsive bidder is considered to be a person or legal entity who has submitted a bid 
conforming in all material respects to the terms and conditions, specifications and other 
requirements in the bid specifications. The NPRSA may deem a bid to be non-responsive if it does 
not conform to the essential requirements listed in the bid specifications. A responsible bidder is 
a person or legal entity who has the capability in all respects to perform in full the contract 
requirements, and has the integrity and reliability which will assure good faith performance. 
Additional requirements of bidder responsibility are listed in RCW 39.04.350. 

If the NPRSA determines a bidder to be not responsible, it must provide (in writing) the reasons 
for the determination. A bidder can appeal the determination per the appeals process listed in 
this document. The NPRSA must consider the additional information before issuing its final 
determination. If the final determination affirms that the bidder is not responsible, the NPRSA 
may not execute a contract with any other bidder until two business days after the bidder 
determined to be not responsible has received the final determination.  

When a trade-in option exists and is in the NPRSA’s best interest, the price offered on the trade 
will be considered when determining the lowest responsive and responsible bid. Additionally, 
RCW 39.30.040 allows any local sales tax revenue generated by the purchase to be considered in 

 
Page 59 of 223



Page 13 of 18 
 
 

 

determining the lowest responsive and responsible bid. Other preferences favoring local 
businesses are not permitted.  

 

Records Management 
Staff are to maintain records sufficient to detail the history of procurement. All quote/bid 
documents must be retained as indicated in the State of Washington Retention Schedule, and be 
available for public inspection. These records will include (but are not necessarily limited to) the 
following: 

· Rationale for the method of procurement 
· Selection of contract type 
· Contractor selection or rejection 
· Basis for the contract price  
· Records of each contractor’s formal bids and any specific conditions imposed on the bid 

 

Vendor Appeals 
Vendors may appeal a proposal solicitation or award of contract issued by the NPRSA, provided 
that the vendor strictly follows the vendor appeals procedures. Prior to the deadline for 
submitting bids or proposals, vendors may appeal specifications, terms, or requirements. After 
the deadline for submission of bids or proposals, vendors may appeal the award or pending 
award to the apparent low bidder, or the selection of the most advantageous proposal. The 
appeal must: 

· Be submitted in writing;  
· Explicitly identify itself as an appeal;  
· Explicitly identify the bid/project/request for which the appeal is made;  
· Explicitly state all reasons and bases in law and fact supporting the appeal (including, 

but not limited to, identification of any and all specifications, terms, requirements, or 
conditions to which the vendor objects);  

· Include any and all supporting documents; and  
· Be received by NPRSA staff within the following deadlines:  

o For appeals involving specifications, terms, conditions, or requirements – no 
later than 7 business days prior to the bid deadline.  

o For appeals involving an award or pending award - no later than 5 business days 
after the award is made. 

A vendor’s initial appeal will be reviewed by the Executive Director with legal and financial 
consultation, if necessary. The initial appeal will be decided based upon the written materials, 

 
Page 60 of 223



Page 14 of 18 
 
 

 

supporting documents, and other information obtained by those reviewing the appeal or protest. 
A meeting or conference with the appellant will occur only if the Executive Director determines 
that a meeting would materially assist the NPRSA in making its decision. Only those issues 
identified by the appellant in the initial written appeal will be considered. The Executive Director 
will issue a written decision no later than 10 business days after staff receive the initial appeal. 

The appellant may file an appeal to the NPRSA’s decision, to be decided by the Board. The 
appellant must submit the appeal in writing to Staff no later than 7 business days after the date 
of the NPRSA’s written decision. The appeal must state the basis in law or fact for the appeal, 
include a copy of the initial appeal and the decision from which the appellant appeals, and state 
whether the appellant requests time to appear before the Board to present the appeal. The 
Board will not consider any issues that were not raised in the initial appeal or protest. At its sole 
discretion, the Board may decide to allow the appellant to make any presentation other than the 
written submission if the Board finds that such a presentation would materially aid its decision. 
The Board’s decision shall be final and binding.  

 

Contract Approval and Management 
 
Accidental losses can arise during and as a result of the activities during the contract fulfillment 
process. The NPRSA seeks to transfer responsibility for such events to those with whom it 
contracts. This section outlines insurance requirements, who has authority to approve contracts 
and change orders, and provides more details about the unique requirements for public works 
contracts.  

 

Grants Management 
The Executive Director, at their sole discretion, may enter into agreements to pursue grant 
funding. If the grant requires a match, the Executive Director may enter into the agreement if 
the grant match has already been approved by the Board.  

 

Insurance 
The standard requirement for insurance coverage is a policy for $1 million. If the activity being 
performed in the contract is determined to be higher or lower risk, the Executive Director may 
negotiate the insurance requirement, with legal consultation, if necessary.  

 

 
Page 61 of 223



Page 15 of 18 
 
 

 

Contract Approval 
Contracts are to be approved as listed below, provided that the total amount of the contract is 
within previously approved budget appropriations. The Board must approve any contract if the 
total cost exceeds previously approved budget appropriations.  

· Under $100,000: Executive Director may approve, unless the total exceeds previously 
approved budget appropriations. 

· Over $100,000: NPRSA Board must authorize the Executive Director to enter into the 
agreement. 

 

Change Orders 
Change orders are to be approved as listed below, provided that the changes do not increase the 
project’s cost in excess of previously approved budget appropriations. The Board must approve 
any change order that increases a project’s cost beyond previously approved budget 
appropriations. Other change orders, if not listed here, must be approved by the Board. 

· Total cumulative amount of change orders is 10% or less: Executive Director may 
approve, unless the change order requires additional budget appropriations. 

· Total cumulative amount of change orders is 10% or more: Board must approve the 
change order. 

· Any time or working days extension: Executive Director may approve.   

 

Public Works Contracts 
There are additional requirements for contracts for public works projects specifically, which 
include prevailing wage, bonds, and retainage.  

 
Prevailing Wages 
Prevailing wages are established by the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries 
for each trade and occupation employed in the performance of public work. They are reflective 
of local wage conditions including factors such as the hourly wages, usual benefits, and overtime 
paid to the majority of workers, laborers, and mechanics within each county. 

The NPRSA is required by RCW 39.12.040 to require contractors to pay prevailing wages on all 
public works contracts. A “Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages” must be received from 
a contractor before any payment is made, and an “Affidavit of Wages Paid” must be received 
following final acceptance of the work. 

 

 
Page 62 of 223



Page 16 of 18 
 
 

 

Performance Bonds and Retainage 
RCW 39.08.010 mandates that the NPRSA require a performance bond for every public works 
contract. This ensures that the job will be completed and that all workers, suppliers, and 
subcontractors will be paid. The bond shall be executed by a surety company authorized to do 
business in Washington State, in an amount equal to 100% of the price specified in the contract. 
RCW 39.08.015 subjects the NPRSA to claims of “laborers, materialmen, subcontractors, and 
mechanics” if the required performance bond is not obtained.  

  
Retainage 
For contracts of $150,000 or less, the NPRSA is allowed (at the option of the contractor) to forego 
requiring a performance bond. Instead, the NPRSA may retain 10% of the contract for 30 days 
after final acceptance, or until receipt of all necessary releases from the Department of Revenue, 
Department of Labor & Industries, and Employment Security Department, and settlement of any 
liens filed under RCW 60.28 (whichever is later). The intent of this exception is to assist small 
contractors who may have difficulty securing a bond. 

 

Surplus of NPRSA Property 
 
The Board may authorize the sale or disposal of NPRSA property, provided that the property is 
no longer needed and that notice of intention to sell is given as provided in this section. The 
property will be deemed as surplus or scrap.  

If grant funding was used to purchase the property, permission must be obtained from the 
grantor before selling or disposing of any property. Failure to obtain permission could obligate 
the NPRSA to repay grant funding. 

Surplus is considered any tangible, personal property owned by the NPRSA that is no longer 
needed or usable, presently or in the foreseeable future. Scrap is any equipment or material 
which cannot serve its original purpose.  

Sales of surplus items to other governmental agencies may occur via private sale. Other sales of 
surplus items shall be sold via public auction, utilizing a third-party auction service. Scrap may 
be sold via public auction, via private sale at prices established by current market conditions, or 
may be donated or disposed of if there is not a viable market. Trade-in of old equipment to 
upgrade similar or reasonably related is permitted when it is in the best interest of the NPRSA.  

 
Page 63 of 223



Appendix 
Appendix A – How to Buy Chart 
 

Purchase Type Cost & Solicitation Method Contract Approval 

Supplies and Equipment < $10,000 – Direct Negotiation 
$10,000 - $50,000 – ITQ, 3 quotes 
$50,000 - $200,000 – ITB 
> $200,000 – ITB, advertisement required 

< $100,000 – ED 
> $100,000 – Board 
 

General Services 

Technology Software & Services 

Professional Services Optional: RFQ or RFP 

A&E Services RFQ only 

Public Works 

< $10,000 – Direct Negotiation 
$10,000 - $350,000 – Small Works (see below) or 
ITB (advertisement required over $200,000) 
> $350,000 – ITB, advertisement required 
 
Small Works 
$10,000 - $50,000 – ITQ, 3 quotes 
$50,000 - $250,000 – ITQ, 5 quotes distributed 
$250,000 - $350,000 – ITQ, 5 quotes notify roster 

 

 
Page 64 of 223



Reference Material 
Templates supporting the procurement and contracting processes can be found in the NPRSA 
Procedure Manual. These may be updated or modified at any time. 

 
Page 65 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Memorandum 

AB # 5D 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, NPRSA Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Minute Order # MO-20-02 reviewing and filing the King County 
Investment Pool Policy dated July 26, 2017; and approving Agreement # A-20-02 
with King County for Cash Management Services; and approving Agreement # A-
20-03 with King County for Investment Services.  

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider whether to enter into two agreements with 
King County for Investment and Cash Management Services, where the Board 
may accrue earnings on cash balances invested through the King County 
Investment Pool.  By approving Minute Order # MO-20-02, the Board formally 
acknowledges receipt of the King County Investment Pool Policy dated July 26, 
2017. 

  
BACKGROUND: DATE ACTION 

JANUARY 22, 2020 
Board was notified that agreements for King County 
Investment and Cash Management Services were never 
executed. 

 
At the January 22, 2020 meeting the Board received notification from Interim 
Executive Director, Wes Phillips that a King County staff member reached out to 
him about agreements for Investment Services and Cash Management Services 
which were never executed. However, while the agreements have not been 
formally executed by the NPRSA, King County has been managing the accounts 
of the NPRSA, and investing cash balances, as if the agreements were in place. 
Meeting Minutes from the February 26, 2020 meeting show record that the 
Interim Executive Director would bring a resolution for the Board to approve the 
agreements at the next meeting. Due to the COVID-19 public health crisis, the 
Board did not meet again until June. These agreements were not ready for the 
June meeting agenda. 

  
DISCUSSION: The King County Investment Pool invests cash reserves for all County agencies 

and approximately 100 special districts. It is one of the largest investment pools 
in the State, with an average asset balance of nearly $5 billion. On average, 

 
Page 66 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Memorandum 

AB # 5D 
 

County agencies comprise 40% of the pool and special districts comprise 60%. 
The County Investment Policies (Att-1) are established and maintained by the 
County Executive Finance Committee, who also oversees the investment 
portfolio. The Pool is only allowed to invest in certain types of highly-rated 
securities, including certificates of deposit, U.S. treasury obligations, federal 
agency obligations, municipal obligations, repurchase agreements and 
commercial paper. The Board is asked to officially receive and file the Investment 
Policy.  
 
The services provided by the Investment Pool are separate, and in addition to, 
the services the NPRSA already receives from King County as the fiduciary agent 
to the NPRSA. By entering into the agreement for Investment Services (Att-3) the 
Board is authorizing King County to invest the cash balances of the NPRSA funds 
in the Investment Pool. In order for King County staff to make these investments 
automatically, the Board is also asked to consider authorizing an agreement for 
Cash Management Services (Att-2) which allows King County staff to manage the 
NPRSA’s cash balances for investment. In addition to potentially accruing 
investment earnings, an added benefit of participating in the Investment Pool is 
that King County will only consider interfund loans to districts that have already 
signed both agreements. 
 
Any investment earnings are deposited back into the NPRSA accounts, after King 
County subtracts a minimal amount to cover the overhead costs of administering 
the Investment Pool. The Cash Management fee is calculated as a percentage of 
the monthly rate of return for the pool, which is currently totals 0.018% but will 
vary with the yield on the pool. The Investment Services fee is calculated as a 
percentage of the average NPRSA cash balance. King County estimates the 
historical administrative cost to be 0.011% of the cash balance  

  
FINANCIAL 

CONSIDERATION: 
For a variable, but minimal fee, the NPRSA may accrue earnings on cash balances 
invested. If those fees are more than what is accrued in investment earnings, 
King County assumes responsibility for the difference. 

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. King County Investment Pool Policy dated July 26, 2017 

Att-2. Agreement # A-20-02 King County Cash Management Services 
Att-3. Agreement # A-20-03 King County Investment Services 

  
RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 
Move to approve Minute Order # MO-20-02, reviewing and filing the King County 
Investment Pool Policy dated July 26, 2017; and approve Agreement # A-20-02 
with King County for Cash Management Services; and approve Agreement # A-
20-03 with King County for Investment Services. 

 
Page 67 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  1 

July 26, 2017 
 
This policy is effective immediately upon adoption and supersedes all previous King County Investment Pool Policies. 

 
PURPOSE:  
The purpose of this document is to set forth the investment objectives, 
investment strategies, and authorized portfolio securities for the management of 
the King County Investment Pool (”Pool”).  The Pool consists of monies invested 
on behalf of the County and other special purpose districts within the County.  
The policy has been adopted by, and can be changed only by, a majority vote of 
the Executive Finance Committee (EFC).  The policy is designed to help King 
County meet the objectives of the Pool and is consistent with State law. This 
policy shall be reviewed annually and any modifications shall be approved by the 
EFC. 
 
SCOPE:   
The policy applies to all financial assets invested in the Pool as defined in King 
County Code (KCC) 4.10.090.  Non-pooled investments which do not meet the 
criteria of this policy require approval by the EFC. 
 
http://www.kingcounty.gov/council/legislation/kc_code.aspx 
 
POOL GOVERNANCE: 
The King County Council has delegated authority (KCC 4.10.05) for oversight of 
the Pool to the EFC, which serves the role of the County Finance Committee as 
defined in RCW 36.48.070.   
 
The Investment Pool Advisory Committee (IPAC) was created by Ordinance 
16280 to provide input to the EFC on matters related to the Pool. The IPAC has 
not been vested with decision making authority for the Pool. The IPAC will make 
recommendations to the EFC on its agenda items related to the Pool.     
 
PRUDENCE:   
The Standard of Prudence to be applied to the administration of the Pool shall be 
the “prudent investor” rule, which states, “Investments shall be made with 
judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of 
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own 
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of 
their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.”  The prudent investor 
rule shall be applied in the context of managing all financial assets within the 
scope of this Policy. 
 
OBJECTIVES: 
It is the policy of the County to invest public funds in a manner which will 
preserve the safety and liquidity of all investments within the Pool while obtaining 
a reasonable return within established investment guidelines. The portfolio 
should be managed in a manner that is responsive to the public trust and 

 
Page 68 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  2 

consistent with State law. Accordingly, the Pool will be guided by the following 
principles, which are intended to supplement KCC 4.10.060: 
 

1. The primary objective of King County’s investment of public funds is to 
safeguard investment principal. 

2. The secondary objective is to maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure that 
funds are available to meet daily cash flow requirements. 

3. The third consideration is to achieve a reasonable yield consistent with 
these objectives. 

 
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY:  
The Director of the Finance and Business Operations Division (“Director”) is 
responsible for the management and investment of public funds (per KCC 
2.16.035) and may delegate management responsibilities to King County 
employees under his control and supervision. 
 
The Director shall be accountable for all investment transactions undertaken and 
shall establish a system of internal controls and written procedures to regulate 
investment activities and personnel. The Director shall also recommend policy 
changes to the EFC as necessary. 
 
PARTICIPATION IN THE POOL: 
Participation in the Pool is limited to King County government agencies and other 
special purpose districts, including school, fire, sewer, library, water and other 
districts within King County for which the King County Treasury Manager serves 
as Treasurer.  
  
Other public entities located within King County, for whom the County does not 
serve as Treasurer, may also be considered for membership in the pool; 
provided that each entity sign and adhere to the terms and conditions of the 
Interlocal Agreement; and provided further that the Director may choose, at 
his/her discretion, to cap the amount the entity may invest in the pool at any 
given time in order to prevent very large cash withdrawals from adversely 
impacting the earnings of other pool members. If such a cap is requested, it shall 
be reflected in a written addendum to the Interlocal Agreement.   
 
Interlocal Agreements: Special purpose districts are required to sign an Interlocal 
Agreement when entering the Pool. This Agreement shall renew automatically 
each year on the districts’ anniversary date unless either the county or the district 
has exercised the termination options under Section VIII of the agreement.  The 
Interlocal Agreement governs the district’s investments and withdrawals from the 
Pool. 
 
Fees and charges: The Pool assesses two fees, both of which are charged 
monthly as a percentage of the total assets invested in the Pool.  The first fee is 
the Investment Pool Fee, which is a fixed rate established by the EFC and 
charged to all pool participants.  RCW 36.029.022 limits that fee to no more than 

 
Page 69 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  3 

the actual cost of operating the pool.  Within three months of the close of King 
County’s fiscal year, the actual costs for operating the pool are determined and a 
rebate of the excess collected is made to pool members. The second fee is the 
Cash Management Pool Fee, which is set at 1.5% of the monthly pool earnings 
rate, not to exceed 8 basis points, regardless of the investment pool rate.  It is 
charged only to those pool members that select to have their available balances 
automatically invested. 
 
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS: 
Investments in the Pool shall be restricted to those authorized in Washington 
State law and further restricted by Schedules herein.   
 
AUTHORIZED BROKER/DEALERS:   
The County shall maintain an ‘Authorized Broker/Dealer List’. Security 
transactions are limited to dealers included on this list.  Broker/Dealers must be 
approved by the County.   To become “approved” by the County, a broker/dealer 
with whom the County does business shall comply with the requirements set 
forth in Schedule IV.  The Finance and Business Operations Division will conduct 
an annual review of authorized broker/dealers to confirm adherence to minimum 
requirements as detailed in Schedule IV. 
 
For best pricing in unusual sell situations, it is permissible to use a broker/dealer 
not on the ‘Authorized Broker/Dealer List’, but this broker/dealer must be 
authorized by the King County Treasury Manager or Director with subsequent 
reporting to the EFC .  These unusual sell transactions can only be executed with 
primary dealers as defined by the New York Federal Reserve Bank.   
 
CREDIT REVIEW PROCESS: 
The County shall maintain an ‘Approved Credit List’.  A description of this 
process and applicable guidelines are described in more detail in Schedule V. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROLS & AUDITS: 
The County has established a system of internal controls to provide reasonable 
assurance that the Pool is operating effectively and efficiently, that financial 
reporting is reliable and that the Pool is in compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of 
control shall not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the valuation of 
costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by management. The 
County shall develop and maintain written procedures for the operation of the 
investment program, which are consistent with this policy. These procedures 
shall include reference to subjects like segregation of duties, safekeeping, 
collateralization, wire transfers and banking related activities. 
 
The State Auditor’s Office conducts an examination of King County’s financial 
affairs at reasonable, periodic intervals as the state auditor shall determine in 
accordance with RCW 43.09.260.  This review helps to ensure compliance with 

 
Page 70 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  4 

applicable laws, regulations and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP).  In the past, this examination has occurred annually.   
 
SECURITY CUSTODY & DELIVERIES: 
All security transactions are to be conducted on a “delivery-versus-payment 
basis” (DVP).  
 
All securities purchased shall be deposited for safekeeping with the custodial 
bank that has been contracted to provide the County with custodial security 
clearance services or with a tri-party custodian bank under a written tri-party 
repurchase agreement.  Certificates of Deposit (CDs) and funds placed with the 
State of Washington Local Government Investment Pool are exempt from the 
DVP policy.  Securities are not to be held in investment firm/broker dealer 
accounts.  All securities will be held in the name of the County or in the nominee 
name of its custodian bank and reconciled monthly. 
 
COMPETITIVE TRANSACTIONS:  
For all transactions the County should seek to receive three (3) competitive bids 
or offers from authorized broker/dealers. 
 
In cases where it may not be possible to obtain three (3) simultaneous bids or 
offers, electronic trading systems may be relied on to verify whether a bid or offer 
reflects a fair market value. 
 
Evaluating prices for less liquid securities or securities with optionality such as, 
callable and mortgage-backed securities, will be accomplished using financial 
tools such as Option Adjusted Spread, Total Return, Breakeven, Spread 
analysis, etc.  These types of securities will often be compared to similar, but not 
identical, securities to determine relative value. 
 
A security with a higher price may be purchased instead of another similar 
alternative, if this higher priced security improves the portfolio’s safety, liquidity, 
or diversification.  
 
Securities that may be purchased without direct competitive offers include: 
 
§ Local government investment pool transactions. 
§ Certificates of deposit that are pledged to the State to satisfy pension 

obligations. 
§ Overnight repurchase agreements and bank savings accounts. 
§ Securities obtained through U.S. Treasury auctions.  
§ Primary issuances of U.S agency, municipal, and corporate offerings.  
 

When investments are purchased directly from issuers (e.g. certificates of 
deposit) market prices shall be documented by reference to offerings of similar 
securities that are of comparable rating and maturity by other direct issuers. 

 
Page 71 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  5 

All securities transactions will be documented and retained in the daily 
investment file or trade logs. 
  
LIQUIDITY AND MATURITY STRUCTURE: 
Maintenance of adequate liquidity to meet the cash flow needs of the Pool is 
essential.  Accordingly, investments for the Pool will be structured in a manner 
that ensures sufficient cash is available to meet anticipated liquidity needs.  
Selection of investment maturities will be consistent with the liquidity 
requirements of the Pool in order to avoid the forced sale of securities prior to 
maturity.   
 
The Pool will maintain an effective duration of 1.5 years or less.  To provide 
sufficient liquidity to meet daily expenditure requirements, the portfolio will 
maintain at least 40% of its total value in securities having a remaining maturity 
of 12 months or less.  This duration, when combined with the minimum 
percentage that must mature within 12 months, provides an appropriate balance 
between the Pool’s objectives.     
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 
Pool performance is evaluated monthly against a customized book value rate of 
return benchmark, which in keeping with the management philosophy and 
strategy of the Pool results in a steadier, more predictable rate of return than a 
total return benchmark.  The benchmark reflects the average composition, target 
maturity and duration and risk tolerances of the pool.  The composition of this 
benchmark is the weighted average book value return of the following 
benchmarks:  
 
40% Bank of America Merrill Lynch 90-Day Treasury Bill Index  
60% Bank of America Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year US Treasury & Agency Index   
 
IMPAIRED INVESTMENTS: 
In the event any investment becomes impaired, as defined in the Impaired 
Investment Policy (Schedule VI), the investment will be treated as detailed in 
Schedule VI.  
 
TRADING & EARLY SALE OF SECURITIES: 
Securities should be purchased, generally, with the intent of holding them until 
maturity. However, in an effort to minimize market risks, credit risks, and increase 
the overall portfolio yield, securities may be sold prior to maturity either at a profit 
or loss when economic circumstances or a deterioration in creditworthiness of 
the issuer warrant a sale of the securities to either enhance overall portfolio yield 
or to minimize loss of investment principal.  
 
In the event of a material downgrade of a security held in the portfolio, the 
Investment Officer or Credit Analyst shall report the downgrade to the Treasury 
Manager or his/her designee and the Director.  In the event of a downgrade 
below the minimum credit ratings authorized by this policy, the security shall be 

 
Page 72 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  6 

evaluated by the Treasury Manager or his/her designee on a case-by-case basis 
to determine whether the security shall be sold or held. It is preferred to sell such 
a security if there is no book value loss.  
 
In the event a sale of a downgraded security would result in a loss, the Treasury 
Manager or his/her designee will evaluate whether to hold or sell the security 
based on the amount of loss, remaining maturity and any other relevant factors.  
The Director shall make the final decision regarding whether to hold or sell the 
downgraded security and shall inform the EFC of such decision in advance of 
executing the transaction, with the understanding the Director has the authority to 
inform the EFC after the transaction in circumstances that require an expedited 
decision on behalf of the Pool and its members. 
 
PURCHASE OF ‘WHEN ISSUED’ SECURITIES: 
Purchases for the sole purpose of trading these securities prior to cash 
settlement are discouraged. Purchases of   ‘when-issued’ securities are 
otherwise authorized as long as sufficient cash is available to consummate their 
acceptance into the Pool portfolio on the settlement date, and at purchase there 
is the ability to hold them in the portfolio to maturity without violating any of the 
diversification/maturity limits of this policy (based on settlement date). 
 
PORTFOLIO REPORTING:    
The EFC shall be provided consistent periodic reporting. These reports shall 
provide an accurate and meaningful representation of the investment portfolio, its 
performance versus the established benchmark, and proof of compliance with 
the investment policy. Reports will include at a minimum: 

· A listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. 
· Effective duration and final maturity of all investments listed. 
· Coupon, discount or earnings rate. 
· Par value, amortized book value and market value. 
· Percentage of the portfolio in each investment category. 
· A listing of all transactions, other than overnight investments, executed 

during the reporting period. 
 
On a quarterly basis, the Pool’s financial consultant shall conduct a review of the 
portfolio. The review shall include at a minimum: 

· Compliance reporting.  
· Summary of market news and events as it relates to portfolio 

diversification. 
· Commentary on the pool’s asset credit quality, liquidity and maturity 

distribution.  
 

 
Page 73 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  7 

ETHICS: 
Officers and staff members involved in the investment process shall maintain a 
code of ethics that is in compliance with the provisions of the Employee Code of 
Ethics KCC 3.04.   
 
http://www.kingcounty.gov/employees/ethics/ecomplete.aspx 
 
CONTINUING EDUCATION: 
It is King County’s policy to require periodic investment training for any county 
employee delegated the authority to manage daily investment transactions for 
the Pool.  The Director shall designate employees who should obtain at least 
twenty (20) hours of investment-related training each year.  A CFA Institute 
member or non-member employee can satisfy this requirement by fulfilling the 
CFA Institute Continuing Education (CE) Program. 
 
POLICY ADOPTION & AMENDMENTS: 
The King County Executive Finance Committee, or its successor, shall adopt and 
may periodically amend the policies governing the Pool.  Except in an 
emergency, the Executive Finance Committee, or its successor, will consult with 
the Investment Pool Advisory Committee at least 60 days prior to adopting or 
implementing changes to any policies governing the Pool.

 
Page 74 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  8 

                     SCHEDULE I 
 
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS MATRIX: 
The follow ing table should be considered along w ith the Schedules that follow .  These Schedules provide additional information on criteria and restrictions that 
apply to many of the Authorized Investments listed in the table.   
 

AUTHORIZED 
INVESTMENTS 

MAXIMUM 
PORTFOLIO 

ALLOCATION 
(% of portfolio’s 

book value at time 
of purchase) 

ISSUER RESTRICTIONS 
(% of portfolio’s book value at 

time of purchase) 
CREDIT QUALITY (at time of purchase) 

(S&P/MOODY'S/FITCH)  
MATURITY 

RESTRICTONS 
U.S. Treasuries or full faith 
and credit of the U.S. 
government. 
 
(MBS restrictions apply as 
noted in section below ) 
 

100% 
 

(10% in the case of 
Treasury Inflation 

Protected Securities) 

None Not Applicable  
Up to 5 years 

U.S. agencies, 
instrumentalities, or 
government-sponsored 
enterprises 
(“Federal Agencies”) 
 
(MBS restrictions apply as 
noted in section below ) 

100% 
 
 
 

Maximum 35% exposure to any 
single Agency 

 
Senior debt obligations issued by any government sponsored 
enterprise, agency or instrumentality of the United States. 
 
 

Up to 5 years 

Repurchase Agreements – 
Top Tier Rating (A-1 or P1) 

100% 100% for repurchase 
agreements w ith the Federal 
Reserve Bank of New  York  
 
25% maximum exposure to any 
one repo counterparty. 
For the purposes of aggregating 
issuers across sectors, 
overnight repo counterparties 
shall NOT be included. 
 

The counterparty must have:  
1. A rating in the highest short-term credit rating category  

by at least one Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating 
Organization (NRSRO) or possesses a guarantee by an 
entity w ith such a rating; and  

2. A minimum asset and capital size of $5 billion in assets 
and $175 million in capital  

60 days or less 

Repurchase Agreements – 
Second Tier Rating (A-2 or 
P-2) 

10% 5% maximum exposure to any 
one repo counterparty. 
For the purposes of aggregating 
issuers across sectors, 
overnight repo counterparties 
shall NOT be included. 
 

The counterparty must have:  
1. A rating in the second highest short-term credit rating 

category  by at least one Nationally Recognized 
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO) or possesses a 
guarantee by an entity w ith such a rating; and  

2. .A minimum asset and capital size of $5 billion in assets 
and $175 million in capital 

 

Overnight Only 

 
Page 75 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  9 

AUTHORIZED 
INVESTMENTS 

MAXIMUM 
PORTFOLIO 

ALLOCATION 
(% of portfolio’s 

book value at time 
of purchase) 

ISSUER RESTRICTIONS 
(% of portfolio’s book value at 

time of purchase) 
CREDIT QUALITY (at time of purchase) 

(S&P/MOODY'S/FITCH)  
MATURITY 

RESTRICTONS 
Reverse Repurchase 
Agreements 

20%  5% per investment dealer 1. rated in the highest short-term credit rating category by at 
least one NRSRO; and  

2. a minimum asset and capital size of $5 billion in assets 
and $175 million in capital  

6 months or 
less 

Local Government 
Investment Pool (“LGIP”) 

25% State of Washington LGIP Not Applicable  Not Applicable  

Bankers’ Acceptances 25% 
 

When combined w ith 
Term Repos (greater 
than overnight), 
Certif icates of 
Deposit, Commercial 
Paper and Corporate 
Notes not to exceed 
50% of the Pool 
assets. 

Must be issued by a bank 
organized and operating in the 
U.S. 

 
Maximum 5% per issuer applied 
across investment types. 
 
 

 
Rated in the highest short-term credit rating category by at 
least tw o NRSROs. 

Up to 180 days 

Certificates of Deposit 
 

25% 
 

When combined w ith 
Banker’s Acceptance, 
Term Repos (greater 
than overnight), 
Commercial Paper 
and Corporate Notes 
not to exceed 50% of 
the Pool  assets. 

Must be a public depository in 
the State of Washington. 

 
Maximum 5% per issuer applied 
across investment types.  
 
 

See RCW 39.58 of the state Code. 
 
If  not 100% collateralized, must be rated in the highest short-
term rating category by at least one NRSRO.  
 
Those institutions not meeting the 100% collateralization or 
minimum credit requirements may receive deposits up to the 
FDIC or federally guaranteed amounts.   

Up to  1 year 

Commercial Paper 25% of total market 
value w hen combined 
w ith Corporate Notes. 

 
When combined w ith 
Banker’s Acceptance, 
Certif icates of 
Deposit, Term Repos 
(greater than 
overnight) and 
Corporate Notes not 
to exceed 50% of the 
Pool assets. 

Secondary market purchases 
only. 
 
Must be issued by a corporation 
organized and operating in the 
U.S. 
 
Maximum 3% per issuer in 
combined categories of 
commercial paper and 
corporate notes. 

 
Maximum 5% per issuer applied 
across investment types. 

Purchases w ith greater than 100 days maturity must have an 
issuer long-term rating in one of the three highest credit rating 
categories by one major NRSRO.  
 
Rated in the highest short-term rating category by at least tw o 
major NRSROs. If the commercial paper is rated by more 
than tw o major NRSROs, it must have the highest rating from 
all of the organizations. 
 
State law  requires that Commercial Paper be purchased only 
from dealers. 

270  days 

 
Page 76 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 
 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  10 

AUTHORIZED 
INVESTMENTS 

MAXIMUM 
PORTFOLIO 

ALLOCATION 
(% of portfolio’s 

book value at time 
of purchase) 

ISSUER RESTRICTIONS 
(% of portfolio’s book value at 

time of purchase) 
CREDIT QUALITY (at time of purchase) 

(S&P/MOODY'S/FITCH)  
MATURITY 

RESTRICTONS 
General Obligation 
Municipal Bonds 
 

20% 5% of portfolio: bond issues by 
pool participants must be 
purchased on the secondary 
market only 

Rated in at least the highest three long-term rating categories 
by at least one NRSRO. 
 
 

5 years 
 
 

Mortgage-Backed 
Securities 
 

25% Must be issued by Federal 
Agencies of the United States.   
 
Investments in MBS w ill count 
tow ard the total that can be 
invested in any one agency as 
described in U.S. Agencies 
above. 
 
Full faith and credit MBS are 
limited to 25%. 

Senior debt obligations issued by any government sponsored 
enterprise, agency or instrumentality of the United States. 
 
The securities must pass the Federal Financial Institutions 
Examination Council (“FFIEC”) suitability test, w hich banks 
use to determine low est risk securities.   
 

5 year average 
life at time of 

purchase 
 

Corporate Notes 
 

25% of total market 
value w hen combined 
w ith commercial 
paper. 

 
When combined w ith 
Banker’s Acceptance, 
Certif icates of 
Deposit, Commercial 
Paper and Term 
Repos (greater than 
overnight) not to 
exceed 50% of the 
Pool assets. 

3% per issuer rated AA or 
better.  
2% per issuer rated in broad 
single A category. 
Split ratings w ill take most 
conservative rating. 
 
Maximum 3% per issuer in 
combined categories of 
commercial paper and 
corporate notes. 
 
Maximum 5% per issuer applied 
across investment types. 

Must be rated at least in the broad single A category or better. 
 
Broad single A category w ith a negative outlook may not be 
purchased.   
 

5 years 
 

The maximum 
duration of the 

corporate notes 
portfolio shall 
not exceed 3 

years. 

Notes:   
1. Floating rate and variable rate securities are permitted subject to the following criteria: 

a. The rate on the FRN/VRN resets no less frequently than quarterly; and 
b. The FRN/VRN is indexed to a money market rate. 
c. The maturity of floaters will be viewed to the final maturity date and the duration of floaters will be viewed to 

the next reset date. 
2. Major NRSRO is defined as Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. 
3. Purchases prior to 9/15/16 are considered grandfathered in for issuer limit purposes and can be held to maturity. 

 
Page 77 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  11 

SCHEDULE II 
 

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 
 

The Pool makes regular use of repurchase agreements (repos) to meet its investment 
needs.  Such transactions are governed by a Master Repurchase Agreement. The 
following criteria apply: 
 
1. Repurchase agreement counterparties will be limited to (i) primary government 
securities dealers who report daily to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or (ii) 
banks, savings and loan associations or diversified securities broker-dealers subject to 
regulation of capital standards by any state or federal regulatory agency.  Please see 
Schedule I for counterparty qualifications. 
 
2. All securities used in deliverable repurchase transactions will be delivered to King 
County’s safekeeping bank.  All securities used in a tri-party repurchase agreement 
must be delivered to a tri-party safekeeping account.  A tri-party agreement is required 
to be signed by all participating parties.  Tri-party custodians are required to provide the 
County with evidence of collateral ownership.  
 
3. Securities used in tri-party repurchase agreements must have a market value 
equal to at least 102% of repurchase price, plus accrued interest.  Tri-party custodians 
are required to mark collateral to market and rebalance accounts daily.  For deliverable 
repurchase agreements with terms from 1 to 30 days, the market value of the collateral 
must equal at least 102% of the repurchase price, plus accrued interest.  102% 
collateralization is required for terms 31 to 60 days.   
 
4. Repurchase agreements have a maximum maturity of 60 days. 
 
 
5. All participating dealers are required to sign a SIFMA Master Repurchase 
Agreement. 
 
6.  Collateral for repurchase agreements will be limited to U.S. Treasury and U.S. 
Agency securities. 
  
REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS: 
A reverse repurchase agreement (“reverse”) is an investment transaction in which 
securities in King County’s portfolio are sold and an agreement is made to buy back the 
securities at a later date.   This agreement discloses a repurchase price, which would 
include a specified interest rate that is applied against the original proceeds.  Although 
reverses can be used as a borrowing mechanism, the proceeds are generally 
reinvested in another instrument to a date similar to the maturity of the reverse.  The 
new instrument provides a greater rate of return than the rate paid on the reverse. 

 
Page 78 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  12 

 
LIMITATIONS ON USE 
1. King County will not use reverses to borrow funds for any purpose. 
 
2. King County will use only reverses that are “match book” transactions.  A match 
book means that the maturity date of the acquired security is identical to the end date of 
the reverse. 
 
3. King County will enter into reverses only with firms with which they have adopted 
a master repurchase agreement.  (see below) 
 
4. King County will not enter into a reverse repurchase agreement for periods 
exceeding six months. 
 
5. King County will not reverse more than 20% of the total balance of the 
Investment Pool at any one time. 
 
MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT: 
A master repurchase agreement contract which defines the responsibilities of both 
parties has been developed by King County.  The County requires all firms to sign the 
agreement before being allowed to do repos/reverses with the County. 
 

 
Page 79 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  13 

 SCHEDULE III 
 
POLICY CRITERIA FOR INVESTMENTS IN CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT: 
Certificates of Deposit (CD’s) can be placed only with institutions that are public 
depositories in the State of Washington.  RCW 39.58 governs public depositories and 
provides that, “All public funds deposited in public depositaries, including investment 
deposits and accrued interest thereon, shall be protected against loss, as provided in 
the chapter”.  
 
POLICY ON EARLY REDEMPTION IN THE EVENT OF FAILURE: 
Because of deposit protection regulations, risk of loss of principal is minimal for 
investment deposits in a bank or thrift institution.  However, in a bank failure, assets of 
an institution may be frozen while regulatory authorities ascertain account balances and 
liabilities.  If a CD matures during that time, cash flow problems may result or the 
opportunity to reinvest those funds may be lost. 
 
If a bank or thrift institution should fail, or the EFC has reason to believe it may fail, King 
County may withdraw a CD prematurely. If the early redemption results in any loss of 
principal or interest, the redemption must have the approval or the Treasury Manager or 
his designee.   
 
POLICY ON BANK AND THRIFT CREDIT EVALUATION: 
King County establishes deposit limitations beyond those provided by RCW 39.58, for 
all financial institutions with which deposits are placed, based upon a financial analysis 
of those institutions.    
 
LIMITATIONS 
RCW 39.58 provides that the deposits of a municipal body cannot exceed the net worth of 
an institution. 
 
If CDs are not 100% collateralized, the County further limits deposits to only those 
institutions rated in the highest short-term credit rating category by at least one NRSRO. 
 
Those institutions not meeting 100% collateralization or the minimum credit 
requirements may receive deposits up to the FDIC or federally guaranteed amounts.     

 
Page 80 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  14 

SCHEDULE IV 
 

BROKER/DEALER SELECTION POLICY 
 

AUTHORIZED BROKER/DEALERS: 
The Finance and Business Operations Division will maintain an Authorized 
Broker/Dealer call list of firms that have established relations with the County.   
 
All broker/dealers that wish to be considered for addition to the established Authorized 
Broker/Dealer List must meet the following minimum requirements: 
 

1. Confirm that they are a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority 
(FINRA), registered as a dealer under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and 
be registered with the Securities Division of the Washington State Department of 
Financial Institutions. 
 

2. Be of high integrity and assign personnel to King County’s account of equally 
high integrity.  This is crucial to King County’s intent is to enter into a long-term 
relationship. 
 

3. Acknowledge receipt of King County’s written Statement of Investment Policy.  
 

4. Sell all securities subject to delivery at King County’s custodial banks.  With the 
exception of collateral calls on repurchase agreements, all transactions are to be 
conducted on a delivery vs. payment (DVP) basis.   
 

5. Demonstrate they have been in operation of effecting transactions in authorized 
investments of this Policy for at least five (5) years. 
 

6. Must be either on the Primary Government Securities Dealers list published by 
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or be a non-primary broker/dealer that 
qualifies under Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net 
capital rule) with a minimum of $175 million of regulatory capital. 
 

7. All firms with whom the County does business must have adequate financial 
strength which will be assessed by a review of the firm’s financial statements and 
other factors, as determined by the County.    
 

8. Broker/Dealers may also provide related services that are considered optional, 
including: 

 
a. An active secondary market for its securities (provided that this would be a 

required service for commercial paper broker/dealers). 
 
b. Internal credit research analysis on commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances 

and other securities it offers for sale. 
 
c. Be willing to purchase securities from King County’s portfolio. 

 

 
Page 81 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  15 

d. Be capable of providing market analysis, economic projections, and 
newsletters. 

 
REGISTERED REPRESENTATIVE EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION 
TO AUTHORIZED BROKER/DEALER POOL LIST: 
In order to be considered the registered representative of the firm must be registered 
with the Securities Division of the Washington State Department of Financial Institutions 
and meet at least one of the following minimum requirements: 
 

1. Have six years of experience as an institutional fixed income registered 
representative. 

 
2. Have five years of experience as a fixed income trader, or portfolio manager with 

at least one year of experience as an institutional fixed income registered 
representative.  
 

3. Have one year of experience as an institutional fixed income registered 
representative and holds the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. 

 
APPLICATION PROCESS:    
A securities firm and registered representative that meets the above criteria can contact 
the King County Finance and Business Operations Division regarding inclusion on King 
County’s waiting list.  Contact should be made with:  Treasury Manager at (206) 263-
2860 or Investment Officer at (206) 263-2866, or in writing to King County 
Administration Building, 500 4th Avenue Room 613, Seattle, WA   98104.  If the firm 
meets the minimum requirements they will be forwarded a copy of this policy and King 
County’s master repurchase agreement, if appropriate. 
 
Each firm will be required to submit a copy of their latest financial report, a completed 
copy of King County’s dealer questionnaire and certification, the resumes of the persons 
who will cover King County’s account, delivery instructions, an organization tree that 
shows all the parent and subsidiary relationships and ownership percentages, and any 
other pertinent information necessary to conduct business.     
 
EVALUATION PERIOD: 
Depending on need, the County may hold two six-month new dealer evaluation periods 
during the year:  These evaluation periods will normally be from January 1 to June 30 
and July 1 to December 31 
 
To be eligible to be selected to participate in the evaluation period, each new firm must 
submit all the information required by this policy three months before the start of the 
evaluation period.  The County will review the material submitted and evaluate each firm 
versus King County’s needs.  Firms that are selected to participate in an evaluation 
period will be notified shortly before the beginning of the period, and the County will 
furnish the firm with an executed trading authorization and delivery instructions.    Firms 
that meet the minimum requirements, but miss the deadline or are not selected for the 
upcoming evaluation period, may be considered for the following evaluation period.  A 
firm may be dropped prior to the completion of the six month period, if the County 
determines that continuing the relationship is not in its best interest.    
 

 
Page 82 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  16 

FIRM SELECTION: 
Both the firm representatives will be evaluated on the material they submit prior to an 
evaluation period. Firms will be rated by their product offerings, electronic inventory 
delivery systems, financial strength, reputation, and research products.  Registered 
representatives will be evaluated on their experience, product knowledge, references, 
professionalism, and communication skills. Equal weighting will be given to the firm and 
the registered representatives.  All else being equal, firms with institutional fixed income 
sale offices in King County may be given preference. 
 
ADDITION TO PRIMARY CALL LIST: 
Firms that demonstrate that they can add value to King County’s investment program 
during the evaluation period will be added to the primary call list.  Each firm will be 
reviewed with respect to its market analysis, knowledge and understanding of King 
County’s investment program, and the professional conduct demonstrated by their 
personnel.   Generally, a firm must have demonstrated during the evaluation period that 
it is handling at least 5% of King County’s investment transactions, or provided other 
valuable services that other firms on the authorized Broker/Dealer list are not providing. 
 
Even if a firm does more than 5% of the investment transactions, it may not be added to 
the list if, in King County’s opinion, the registered representatives utilize over aggressive 
sales techniques, are difficult to work with, are not considerate of the investment staff’s 
time, recommend securities not authorized by this policy or are untrustworthy.   
 
DELETION FROM PRIMARY CALL LIST: 
Firms may be dropped from the Authorized Broker/Dealer List when they have been 
unable to achieve 5% of King County’s business during a six-month period.  The 
determination of whether to drop a firm will also be based on King County’s long-term 
experience with the firm, and whether the drop in business is due to temporary 
conditions.  The firm may also be retained on the list if it provides other valuable 
services such as unique research or pricing on difficult-to-price securities.  If the County 
determines that it would be better served by retaining the firm, but changing the 
registered representative that is covering the County, the County may request that King 
County’s account be switched to another registered representative.  
 

 
Page 83 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  17 

 DEALER QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
 
1. Name of Firm 
  
2. Address                                         Regional/local                         National offices 
  
  
  
3. Telephone number (     )                                               Regional/Local 
                                (     )                                               National Headquarters 
  
4. Primary representative/manager/partner-in-charge 
  
 Name  Name 
 Title  Title 
 Telephone No. (     )  Telephone No. (     ) 
 Fax No. (     )                                                           Fax No. (     ) 

 
5. Are you a primary dealer in U.S. Government securities? 
 [     ]   Yes              [     ]   No 
  
6. If so, for how long has your firm been a primary dealer? __________  years 
  
7. What was your firm’s total volume in U.S. Government and agency securities trading last 

year? 
 
Firm-wide $                                                       Number of Transactions 

  
 Your local/regional office  $                               Number of Transactions 
  
8. Which instruments are offered regularly by your local/regional desk? 
 [     ]    T-bills [     ]     Taxable Municipals 
 [     ]    Treasury notes/bonds [     ]     Bankers Acceptances (BAs) 
 [     ]    Agencies  (specify) [     ]     Term Treasury or Agency  
 [     ]    Corporate Notes              repurchase agreement 
 [     ]    Other Instruments  

          (list below) 
[     ]     Commercial Paper   

              __________________ [     ]     Agency Mortgage-backed CMOs 
              __________________  
              __________________  
              __________________  
  
9. Identify all personnel who will be trading with or quoting securities to the King County 

Finance Division. 
 (     )  
 (     )  
 (     )  
 (     )  
 (     )  
 (     )  
10. Which of the above personnel have read King County’s investment policies? 
 
 

   

    

 
Page 84 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  18 

 
11. Indicate which of the above agents of your firm’s local/regional offices currently are 

licensed, certified or registered, and by whom. 
 

 Agent  Licensed or registered by 
    
    
    
  

 
12. Identify your public-sector clients in our geographical area who are most comparable to 

King County’s. 
 

 Entity Contact Person Telephone No. Client since 
                                                                           (      ) 
                                                                           (      ) 
                                                                           (      ) 
  

 
13. Has your firm ever been subject to a regulatory or state or federal agency investigation for 

alleged improper, fraudulent, disreputable or unfair activities related to the sale of 
government securities or money market instruments?  Have any of your employees ever 
been so investigated?  
Explain.         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14. Has a public-sector client ever claimed that your firm was responsible for investment 
losses?  Explain. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15. Include samples of research reports that your firm regularly provides to public-sector 
clients. 
 
 
 
 

16. Explain your normal custody and delivery process.  Who audits these fiduciary systems? 
 
 
 
 
 

17. Provide certified financial statements and other indicators regarding your firm’s 
capitalization. 
 

 
18. Describe the capital line and trading limits that support/limit the office that would conduct 

business with our government. 
 
 
 

 
Page 85 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  19 

 
  19. What training would you provide to our employees and investment officers? 

 
 
 
 
 

  20. Has your firm consistently complied with the Federal Reserve Bank’s capital adequacy 
guidelines?  As of this date, does your firm comply with the guidelines?  Has your capital 
position ever fallen short?  By what factor (1.5x, 2x, etc.) does your firm presently exceed 
the capital adequacy guidelines?  Include certified documentation of your capital 
adequacy as measured by the Federal Reserve standards. 
 
 
 
 

  21. Do you participate in the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) insurance 
program?  If not, explain why not. 
 
 
 

  22. What portfolio information do you require from your clients? 
 
 
 

  23. What reports, transactions, confirmations and paper trail will we receive? 
 
 
 

  24. How many and what percentage of your transactions failed last month?  Last year? 
 

 
25.               

 
  
 

26.               
 
 
 

27.               
           

 
 
 

  28.

 

 

 
Does your firm list its inventory on Bloomberg’s BOOM and Bloomberg Bond Trader (BBT) 
screens? 
 
 
Does your firm list inventory on Tradeweb?  If so, which products are listed there? 
 
 
 
If your firm is a subsidiary, please describe any written financial guarantees that your 
parent has entered into that provide financial support to your organization. 
 
 
 
Describe the precautions taken by your firm to protect the interests of the public when 
dealing with governmental agencies as investors.  

 
Page 86 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  22 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that all personnel who will be handling King County’s account have 
personally read King County’s investment policy, and that I am authorized to execute 
this request on behalf of the firm.   

As a Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registered broker or dealer and a 
member of FINRA, the firm is subject to the federal securities laws and regulations, and 
the rules of the SEC and FINRA.  Those rules establish, among other things, obligations 
regarding the suitability of investment recommendations and prohibitions on the use of 
fraudulent and deceptive practices.   I hereby certify that the firm has in place policies 
and procedures and a system of supervision that are reasonably designed to achieve 
compliance with applicable securities laws and regulations, and with applicable SEC 
and FINRA rules.  

 
Signed: Title:    
 
Name (print): Title (print):    
 
Date: _________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 87 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  23 

SCHEDULE V 
 

CREDIT REVIEW PROCESS  
 
APPROVED CREDIT LIST:    
The County shall maintain an approved credit list to help manage the Pool’s exposure to 
issuers that present some element of credit risk.  Those listed issuers would include all 
investment types, with the exception of those backed by the full faith and credit of the 
US Treasury, Federal Agencies, the Washington State LGIP, repurchase agreements, 
100% collateralized certificates of deposit, and FDIC-insured investments.  This list shall 
assist the County in determining a prudent credit profile amongst its holdings.    
 
CREDIT COMMITTEE (CC):  
The purpose of the credit committee is to: 

· Review the quality of the approved credit list 
· Review the effectiveness of credit related processes 
· Provide guidance to the EFC for new credit approvals or removals from the 

approved credit list. 
 
The CC members include the King County Treasury Manager, the King County Chief 
Investment Officer, the King County Senior Debt Analyst, and the King County Chief 
Economist.  The CC holds meetings on a monthly basis and takes action through 
consensus of its members.  Its actions are reported in meeting minutes.  In the case of 
vacancies, the acting representative in the position will replace the CC member.  
Committee members and King County credit analyst may attend educational events 
sponsored by broker/dealers, vendors, professional organizations or rating agencies to 
keep abreast of market developments.   
 
EXTERNAL SOURCES:  
The County may seek to supplement its resources through the services of external 
parties. Services to be sought externally could include, but would not be limited to: 

· providing advice on credit review procedures and framework 
· providing advice on changes in the credit profile of particular industries and/or 

sectors 
· monitoring the credits held by the County and alerting the County to any 

developments with those or similar credits,  
· researching specific credit issues or issuers 
· providing advice on issuers to be added to the approved credit list or removed 

from the approved credit list 
 

 
Page 88 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  24 

SCHEDULE VI 
 

IMPAIRED INVESTMENT POLICY  
 
1.0 Purpose  
 
1.1 This policy is adopted by King County’s EFC to address the treatment of impaired 
investments, as defined in Section 2.0, consistently with applicable law and the terms of 
the investment agreements with pool members. The policy addresses how to provide 
fair and equitable treatment of pool members’ interests in the event one or more of the 
pool investments becomes impaired.  
 
1.2 The policy specifically addresses situations involving pool members who are 
completely withdrawing from the pool or who are removing substantial funds from the 
pool prior to the distribution of any realized loss.  
 
2.0 Definitions  
 
2.1 Impaired Investment: An investment is deemed to be “impaired” when: (a) its credit 
quality is rated below investment grade by Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and/or Fitch; (b) 
a default has occurred on payment at maturity; or (c) an enforcement event, as defined 
in the investment’s program documents, has occurred. An impaired investment is also 
referred to as “distressed.”  
 
2.2 Unrealized Loss: A loss calculated using the fair value of the investment, but which 
has not been realized through a transaction such as the sale of a security. It is also 
referred to as a “paper loss.” An unrealized loss is not distributed to pool members.  
 
2.3 Realized Loss: A loss that is recognized when investments are sold for a price lower 
than the carrying value or it is determined that the investment has no value and 
therefore it is not possible to sell the security at any price. This loss is distributed to pool 
members.  
 
2.4 Fair Value: This is the amount at which an investment is being exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties. In conditions where market pricing is not 
available, other generally recognized valuation methodologies may be used.  
 
2.5 Par Value: This refers to the nominal or face value of a security. The par value is the 
amount the issuer is obligated to pay the investor when the security matures.  
 
3.0 Goals  
 
The policy is intended to serve the following goals among others:  
 
3.1 Seek Options to Recover Principal: The pool will first seek options that allow for the 
recovery of the principal value of the impaired investment over time, thereby avoiding a 
realized loss. Any selected option must be justified in terms of risk, cost/benefit, and 
legal soundness.  
 

 
Page 89 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  25 

3.2 Distribute Any Realized Loss Fairly and Equitably: If a loss must be realized, the 
loss will be distributed in a manner that is fair and equitable to pool members, as set 
forth in this policy.  
 
3.3 Protect New Monies Entering Pool: The pool will seek to isolate a realized loss 
impact in such a way that new monies entering the pool after an investment is deemed 
impaired will not be factored into the calculation and distribution of the realized loss.  
 
3.4 Prevent a Run on the Pool: The County will not allow members to exit the pool or 
remove substantial balances from the pool in order to avoid loss exposure, thereby 
undermining the confidence of remaining pool members. The County will ensure that 
those pool members completely exiting the pool or withdrawing substantial funds from 
the pool are required to leave sufficient funds in the pool to offset the maximum 
potential future realized loss on any investment that is impaired at the time of withdrawal 
or exit.  
 
4.0 Distributing a Realized Loss—Holding Period Method  
 
4.1 A realized loss will be apportioned based on each pool members’ average cash 
balance from the time the impaired investment was acquired through the date the 
investment is deemed impaired. This is referred to as the “holding period” for the 
impaired investment.  
 
4.1.1 Example: An impaired commercial paper investment acquired on April 18, 2007 
enters into an accelerated enforcement event on October 17, 2007. If the total realized 
loss to the pool is $10 million and a pool member has an average cash balance equal to 
1 percent of the pool during this time period, then the pool member is apportioned 
$100,000 for the loss.  
 
4.2 This treatment of losses protects new monies which enter the pool after the date an 
investment is deemed impaired from being exposed to a realized loss associated with 
an impaired investment.  
 
4.2.1 Example: If a pool member had a $50 million bond issue that was placed in the 
pool after the date an investment is deemed impaired, then this new $50 million would 
not be part of the member’s average cash balance during the designated holding period 
for the purpose of calculating their share of the realized loss.  
 
5.0 Pool Members Exiting Pool Prior To Realized Loss Distribution  
 
5.1 Members who request a complete withdrawal of funds from the pool prior to a 
realized loss must first ensure that their request is consistent with their signed 
investment agreement, including prior notification requirements.  
 
5.2 Retainage for Loss Coverage: The County will require the exiting pool member to 
retain sufficient funds in the pool to cover any future realized loss on an impaired 
investment. The County will calculate the pool member’s pro rata share of an estimated 
100 percent loss of the par value of the impaired investment using the holding period 
method set forth in section 4.0. This amount will be deducted from the requested 
withdrawal of funds and will be retained by the pool until such time that the pool 

 
Page 90 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  26 

recovers the full par value of the investment or distributes a realized loss. If a realized 
loss is less than the amount being retained by the pool to cover losses, this difference 
will be reimbursed to the exiting pool member at the time the realized loss is allocated to 
pool members.  
 
5.2.1 Example: A pool member requests the withdrawal of $10 million on the 
anniversary date of their pool agreement and provides proper advance notice. The pool 
member has an average cash balance equal to 1 percent of the total pool assets during 
a defined holding period for an impaired investment. The par value on the impaired 
investment is $50 million. The amount retained by the pool to cover any loss is 
$500,000 (1 percent x $50 million). Therefore, the net withdrawal payment is $9.5 
million ($10 million - $500,000 retained for loss coverage). Of the $500,000 retained by 
the pool, all or a portion of this amount will be returned to the exiting pool member 
depending on whether the full par value is eventually repaid to the pool.  
 
5.3 If the County is issued a new security (or securities) as part of a restructuring 
solution for an impaired investment, then the full retainage amount will be returned to 
the pool member upon the full maturity payment of the new security (or securities). Also, 
if a restructuring solution results in periodic cash flow payments or the partial repayment 
of the par value of an impaired investment, these payments will be distributed to pool 
members.  
 
5.4 Pool members will continue to receive interest earnings, as set forth in their 
investment agreements, on the amount of their retainage for loss coverage provided 
that, if the impaired assets are separated from the performing assets into a separate 
impaired investment pool, then no interest earnings will be distributed from the impaired 
pool until the full principal due on the impaired investment has been recovered.  Full or 
partial recovery of these impaired funds is dependent on the implementation of 
restructuring agreements involving each impaired investment. 
  
Provided further that no administrative fees will be charged to those assets in the 
impaired investment pool and any cash recovery from the impaired investments in 
excess of the retainage for loss coverage will be returned to each participant’s fund in 
the performing pool effective on the day these funds were settled, thereby lowering the 
total amount impaired. 
 
6.0 Pool Members Removing Substantial Funds Prior To Realized Loss 
Distribution  
 
6.1 Members who request withdrawals of their cash balances must make the request 
consistent with their signed investment agreement, including prior notification 
requirements.  
 
6.2 Retainage for Loss Coverage: Prior to approving the request, the County will 
calculate the amount of funds that must be retained in the pool to cover the pool 
member’s share of any future realized loss on an impaired investment. The retainage 
for loss coverage will be calculated and applied in the same manner as Section 5.0.  
 
 
 

 
Page 91 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  27 

 
7.0 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impaired Investments  
 
7.1 The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) promulgates accounting 
guidance. GASB 31 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for 
External Investment Pools, provides guidance for investment accounting. Additionally, 
GASB also provides guidance through questions and answers in its annual 
comprehensive implementation guides.  
 
7.2 In accordance with GASB 31, the investments in the County investment pool are 
reported in the King County’s year-end financial statements at fair value. That valuation 
takes into account any impaired investments.  
 
7.3 If fair value is not determined by quoted market prices, the GASB Implementation 
Guideline suggests the security’s value be estimated. This estimate calculation requires 
professional judgment and use of valuation techniques. In these cases, the County will 
obtain an estimate of the fair value from an investment bank of high reputation and 
solvency.  
 
7.4 All investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments is 
recognized as revenue in the King County’s statement of activities. Negative investment 
income is reported as negative revenue.  
 
7.5 GASB 31 does not mandate the manner, frequency or method of the distribution of 
investment earnings. The County, as the pool sponsor, determines the distribution 
methodology.  
 
7.5.1 Based on longstanding past practice, the county only distributes realized gains 
and losses to pool members. The County does not distribute unrealized gains or losses 
on its investments.  
 
8 Period of Applicability  
 
8.1 This policy reflects applicable statutes, GASB 31 and standard accounting practices, 
the terms of the agreements with pool members and the actual practices that have been 
followed in the past management of the pool and therefore applies to all withdrawals, 
exits, or other events that fall within its subject matter scope.  
 
 
 
 

 
Page 92 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  28 

SCHEDULE VII 
 
POLICY STATEMENT ON INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS OF POOL MEMBERS 
It is King County’s policy that all members of the Pool will have signed the Pool 
Agreement.  A copy of the current form of the Agreement is posted on the County’s web 
site at the following link: 
 
http://www.kingcounty.gov/operations/Finance/Treasury/InvestmentPool.aspx 
  

 
Page 93 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  29 

FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS DIVISION 
KING COUNTY  

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY  
 

SCHEDULE VIII 
 

Pool-Plus – Long-Term Investment Option  
 
Purpose 
This policy is adopted by King County’s Executive Finance Committee (EFC) to address 
the circumstances under which County agencies or districts can invest funds beyond 
the maximum maturity limit established for the King County Investment Pool (KCIP). 
There are circumstances where the investment horizon of the KCIP is not aligned with 
the long-term investment horizon of the agency or district.  This policy provides an 
investment option that allows a participant in the KCIP to request the County to combine 
a portfolio of individual long-term securities in the same fund that is invested in the KCIP 
(RCW 36.29.022).  The pooling of the long-term portfolio with the KCIP provides the 
ability to invest at durations longer than the KCIP, while maintaining access to the 
liquidity of the KCIP.  The Pool-Plus program will allow qualifying funds to invest over 
longer durations recognizing there are:  (1) potential risks such as increased price 
volatility and the possibility of selling securities before maturity to pay unexpected 
expenditures could result in a loss of principal; (2) benefits from reducing reinvestment 
risk which improves the predictability of future budget revenue; (3) and potential 
rewards such as increased earnings. 
 
Goals  
The policy is intended to serve the following goals:  
 

· Provide an investment option for funds with investment horizons far beyond the 
maximum maturity limit of the pool.  

 
· Minimize credit risk exposure that long-term investments outside the KCIP will 

face.  
 

· Minimize the possibility of negative financial impacts on current pool participants. 
 

· Ensure that a fund requesting to invest in long-term investments outside the pool 
understands, and accepts, the greater price volatility that is inherent in longer 
term investments. 
 

· Minimize any operational burden that would distract the investment team from its 
primary mission of managing the investment pool. 
 

 
Eligibility Criteria 

1. Only County agencies or district funds for which the County serves as ex officio 
treasurer are eligible.   

2. Funds that are short-term in nature will not be eligible. Some examples of short-
term funds that would generally not be eligible include operating funds, general 

 
Page 94 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  30 

funds, current expense funds, bond financed construction funds subject to 
rebate, etc. 

3. Funds must have investment horizons that extend beyond 5 years, and the 
possibility of having to sell investments prior to maturity must be extremely 
unlikely.  This ensures that the purpose is to minimize reinvestment risk and not 
to assume higher risk levels in the sole hope of capturing higher yields by 
assuming greater market risk. 

4. To minimize the operational burden on the investment team, funds must have at 
least $5 million available for investment outside of the reserve that will be 
maintained in the KCIP.  However, when more than 75% of the available funds 
are designated for the KCIP, the combined duration becomes closer to the 
KCIP’s, and this may result in the fund not being approved for the Pool-Plus 
program because the goal of investing for a longer time horizon than the KCIP’s 
is not being satisfied, and the work load for the investment team is increased. 

5. County agencies and districts wishing to participate in the Pool-Plus program 
must complete the appropriate application. (See Appendix 1 for districts and 
Appendix 2 for County agencies.) 

6. To protect the soundness of the KCIP, the EFC must approve all applications to 
participate in the Pool-Plus program which validates that the requesting fund has 
a true business need to participate in the Pool-Plus program.  This reduces the 
likelihood that a Pool-Plus participant can harm other KCIP participants by 
moving money out of the KCIP when the KCIP rate is low and then moving the 
funds back when it is high.  An application from a fund that has previously 
terminated its participation in the Pool-Plus program, and then reapplies, can 
expect its request to receive additional scrutiny.  

 
Eligible Securities 
The KCIP will be used for the liquidity portion of the portfolio, while the following 
investment types will be used for the longer term investments: 

A.  U.S Treasuries or securities with full faith and credit of the U.S. government 
backing them. 

B.  Senior debt obligations issued by U.S. agencies, instrumentalities, or 
government-sponsored enterprises such as Federal National Mortgage 
Association (FNMA), Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Farm Credit 
Bank (FFCB), and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC).  While 
these agencies have credit ratings equivalent to the U.S. government, they are 
not explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government.  Financial market participants 
view them as having an “implied guarantee” because these agencies were 
chartered by Congress. 

The investment team will be responsible for selecting the mix of securities between U.S 
Treasury and agency securities.  However, the fund’s management and governing body 
may request that only U.S. Treasury securities be purchased. 
 
The investment team will limit purchases to the above sectors because they have 
extremely low levels of credit risk and trade in liquid markets.  The investment team will 

 
Page 95 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  31 

also not purchase securities with prepayment risk like mortgage-backed or callable 
securities.  Since longer term securities that have a higher exposure to market risk from 
changes in interest rates, compounding the risk exposure by adding credit and 
prepayment risk is not the best option for a passive, long-term strategy. 
 
Investment Strategy 
The investment strategy for a fund approved for the Pool-Plus program will consist of 
two parts:  The KCIP and the longer term investments.  The KCIP will hold any reserve 
that will be used for liquidity or as an extra cushion to reduce the probability that a 
longer term security would have to be sold before maturity.  
 
Two investment options will be offered for the long-term investment program.  Option 1 
is a 10-year ladder strategy.  A 10-year bond ladder will generally consist of 10 fixed-
income securities of equal size invested with maturities from 1 to 10 years. The 
investment team will attempt to keep the average maturity of funds using Option 1 
between 4 and 6 years. 
 
Example:  A pool participant has a reserve fund with $20 million that will be used to 
replace infrastructure.  They expect the expenditure will take place in 40 years.  
However, there is also a possibility that a natural disaster or unexpected event might 
cause them to have to spend funds before then.  Their management and governing 
body decides to maintain a liquidity/contingency balance of $10 million in the KCIP.  
This would leave $10 million for the bond ladder.  The example below shows how this 
ladder strategy might look. 
 
 

Year Amount Invested 
1 $1 million 
2 $1 million 
3 $1 million 
4 $1 million 
5 $1 million 
6 $1 million 
7 $1 million 
8 $1 million 
9 $1 million 
10 $1 million 

Total 10 million 
 
 
With $10 million in the KCIP and $10 million in the ladder the average duration of this 
fund would be about 3 years, which is approximately 3 times greater than the KCIP’s 
usual duration. 
 
Option 2 will be available for funds that have $25 million or more and that believe Option 
1 does not adequately meet its investment objectives.  If the investment team concurs 
that Option 1 is not workable for the fund, they will work with fund to develop an 
investment plan that better meets the unique cash flow and other objectives of the fund. 
 

 
Page 96 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  32 

Whenever it is reasonable, the investment team will attempt to add to securities already 
held in its portfolios, instead of buying a new security.  This will reduce the number of 
securities held, which will reduce safekeeping expenses.  The investment team will also 
attempt to consolidate purchase requests from multiple entities into one trade.  This will 
also help to reduce safekeeping and trading expenses. 
 
Operational Features 

· Adding additional monies to Option 1 and 2 after the initial investment: 
o When a security matures in the Option 1 or 2 programs new money can 

be added to the reinvestment of the proceeds. 
o On a quarterly basis new money can be added by emailing the request to 

investment.pool@kingcounty.gov.  The request period is open the last 10 
business days of any quarter.  The investment team will compile the 
requests, and will place new investments usually within the first 5 business 
days of the new quarter (e.g., requests received in the last 10 business 
days of December will generally be placed in the first 5 business days of 
January). 

o Minimum quarterly addition is $1 million for Option 1. 
o Minimum quarterly addition is $5 million for Option 2. 
o Should the amount requested to be invested exceed line (C) from the 

Fund Details section of the application most recently approved by the 
EFC, a new application and EFC approval will need to be obtained. 

· Communications 
o The investment team will contact authorized personnel before reinvesting 

the proceeds from maturing investments or when investing new money to 
discuss the new investment purchase. 

o If the investment team identifies an opportunity to improve or rebalance 
the participant’s long-term portfolio, they will consult with authorized 
personnel before taking any action that requires a sale before maturity. 

o Pool-Plus participants should communicate any material change in their 
cash flow or financial condition that could impact their ability to continue 
participating in the Pool-Plus program as soon as possible. 

· It is expected that securities purchased under Option 1 or 2 would normally be 
held to maturity, but if the investment team and the Pool-Plus participant agree 
that a sale would be beneficial, sales will be allowable. However, if a sale would 
generate a realized loss, the investment team would inform the Director of the 
size of the loss and why the sale is being requested.  The Director shall then 
inform the EFC of such decision in advance of executing the transaction with the 
understanding the Director has the authority to inform the EFC after the 
transaction in circumstances that require an expedited decision.  

· Coupon payments will automatically be invested into the KCIP. 

· King County has the right to modify the investment options available to Pool-Plus 
program participants when it deems it prudent to do so. 

 
Page 97 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  33 

· There will be no additional fees to participate in the Pool-Plus program.  The fees 
agreed to in the KCIP Agreement and the King County Cash Management 
Services Agreement Investment will apply to the invested balances in the funds 
that participate in the Pool-Plus program. 

· All investment-related decisions and transactions will be made by those 
individuals designated by the Director. 

· The Pool-Plus program is based on a long-term, passively managed strategy.  
Any attempt by a participant in the Pool-Plus program to shift dollars between the 
KCIP and Options 1 or 2 that appears to be harmful to the effective management 
of the County’s investment operations will not be allowed.  To protect other KCIP 
participants, the EFC has the power to terminate a fund’s ability to participate in 
the Pool-Plus program with 90 days’ notice to the agency or district.  The agency 
or district may terminate this agreement with 45 days’ notice.   

 
Acceptance of Risk 
Any fund that requests the ability to invest in long-term investments outside the KCIP 
will be required to attest that they can tolerate the price volatility associated with long 
duration securities.  In the case of County funds, this acceptance of price risk must be 
approved by the fund’s financial manager and by the department director.  In the case 
of districts, an authorized person must sign the request and the district’s governing 
board must submit a resolution attesting that they can tolerate and accept the risks 
associated with long-term investments. 

As long as the securities are held to maturity, unrealized losses will diminish over time 
because the investor will receive the face amount (assuming no credit default) at 
maturity.  However, unrealized losses may matter in certain types of funds.  For 
instance, if a reserve fund needs to have a minimum market value and the fund falls 
below this level; the fund manager may have to transfer more funds to bring the fund 
back to its required balance.  If other funds are not available to transfer in, this may 
cause the fund to be out of compliance with its legal commitment. 

Any unrealized or realized gains/losses in a fund’s investments in Option 1 or 2 of the 
Pool-Plus program will belong solely to that fund because those assets are the direct 
investments of the participant and are not assets of the KCIP.  Realized and unrealized 
gains/losses in the KCIP will be governed by the agreements and policies that it 
operates under. 

Being public entities, participants in Options 1 and 2 are also subject to increased 
reputational risk.  This is the risk that government officials may lose stature if the market 
value of their investments falls significantly.  Participants must understand that the 
overall length of the investments in Options 1 and 2 cause these options to have more 
market risk and less liquidity than the KCIP.  Unrealized or realized losses could 
generate extra scrutiny by the media, constituents, auditors, etc., and this could have 
negative consequences for the officials involved. 

Those entities considering Options 1 and 2 should also be aware that the County’s uses 
accounting practices that are consistent with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) accounting standards.  These means that the County amortizes/accretes 
premiums and discounts on a monthly basis and annually marks securities to their fair 

 
Page 98 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  34 

market as required by GASB Statement No. 31.  Those considering the Pool-Plus 
option should make sure their organization is comfortable with these accounting 
practices. 

 

 
Page 99 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  35 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

DISTRICT APPLICATION 
 POOL-PLUS OPTION 

PART 1 
DISTRICT CONTACT INFORMATION 

D istr ic t name:   Date:  
C o n tact name:  C o n tact title:  
Pho ne:    F ax:    E -mail:    

D istr ic t add ress:  
C ity :   Z IP  co de:  

F UND DETAILS 
F und name:  F und number:  

F und ty pe (general,  c apital,  r eserve, etc .): 
Balance  in  the fund as o f the mo st r ecent mo nth-end: $  

(A ) A mo unt o f fund balance to be in vested in  Option 1 o r  2 upon approval:  $  

(B) O v er a 10-y ear horizon, w hat is the cumulative amo unt you  expect to  add to  Option 1 o r  2?   $  
(C ) To tal o f lin es (A)  and (B):  $  

A DDITIONAL INFORMATION (CAN BE  SUBMITTED ON EXTRA SHEET) 

W hat business need do you  have that makes Option  1 o r 2 app rop riate fo r y our o rganization?   
W h ich lo ng- term op tio n is the fund r equesting?         O p tio n 1 ( ladder)                       O p tio n 2 (C ustom)  
P lease attach  y our  10-year financial analysis that suppor ts (B)  above. 

A re there any c ircumstances that might delay o r r educe fu ture r evenue collections?  I f so, p lease desc ribe. 
A re there any c ircumstances that might ac celerate or  inc rease futu re expenditures? I f so , p lease describe. 
W hat impac t wou ld an  un realized  loss in  the r ange o f 3 to  15 per cent have o n the fund?   

DISTRICT AUTHORIZED S IGNATURE (REQUESTING POOL-PLUS O PTION) 

S ignatu re:   

 

P r in t Name: 

T itle:  

Date:  
Impor tant – P lease Include the Following Attachment: 

Ø  C o py of the governing body’s resolut ion requesting the Pool-Plus investment  option  from King County. 
KING C OUNTY EXECUTIVE F INANCE COMMITTEE  REVIEW (COUNTY USE O NLY) 

Par t 1 signed  & r esolution  r eceived?  Yes   No   P ar t 3 signed  & r esolution  r eceived?  Yes   No   

Po o l-P lu s Option A pproved by EFC? Yes   No   Date A pp roved/Den ied : 
C o py sen t to  d istrict?   Yes   No   O p tio n approved:   O ption 1 ( ladder)            O p tio n 2 (C ustom)   

INSTRUCTIONS 
1.  Distr ic t co mpletes and signs Part 1 above, and  emails it to :  Investmen t.Pool@kingcoun ty.gov. 
2.  King  C oun ty completes P art 2 and  r eturns to  the d istrict.  
3.  The d istr ic t completes P ar t 3 and  retu rns the signed documen t alo ng w ith the governing body’s r esolution. 

O nce th is step  is co mpleted , the r equest w ill b e brought before the EFC fo r its co nsideration.  I f the C ounty 
do es no t r eceive a completed Part 3, the C ounty w ill assume the d istrict has d ropped their r equest. 

 

 
Page 100 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  36 

 
A PPENDIX 1  (CONT INUT ED)  

DISTRICT APPLICATION 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF ALL RISKS  

P A R T  2  ( C O M P L ET ED  B Y  K I NG C O UNT Y )  
DISTRICT INFORMATION  

D istr ic t name:   F und Number: Date:  
20-YEA R INTEREST RA TE A NALYSIS F OR 5 A ND 10 YEAR TREASURY NOTES 

 

INTEREST RATE SHOCK A NALYS IS (RATES UP 100, 200, &  300 BA S IS POINTS) 

 

P A R T 3  ( COM PLETED B Y D ISTR ICT)  
A fter  r ely ing o n o ur o wn due d iligence and r eviewing the b rief analysis p repared by K ing C ounty above, the 
d istr ic t r equests EFC approval o f o ur  Pool-Plus Investment O ption Applic ation  (select o ne):Yes   No  
 
The d istr ic t r equests that K ing C ounty buy o nly securities that ar e issued by the U .S. Treasury o r ar e backed by 
the fu ll faith  and  c redit o f the United S tates be pur chased fo r the bond ladder(select o ne):Yes   No   
 
DISTRICT AUTHORIZED S IGNATURE 

S ignatu re:   

 

P r in t Name: 

T itle:  

Date:  
If  “Yes” is Selected in Part 3, P lease Include the Following Attachment: 

Ø  C o py of the governing body’s resolut ion acknowledging that the d istr ict  is relying on  its o wn d ue 
d i l igence and  has reviewed  the in formatio n provided  by King County in Part 2 above and that i t agrees 
to  a bide by the p olicies  for the Pool -plus Opt ion.  T he resolutio n must  also state that the dis trict accepts 
the  market  ri sk and the risk that the distr ic t cou ld experience an actual loss  or pr inc ipal i f it must sell  
a n  investment before maturi ty,  and i t must  designate at least 2  people that are authori zed to provide 
t r a nsaction ins tructions to the investment team.. 

 

 
Page 101 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  37 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

KING COUNTY AGENCY APPLICATION 
 POOL-PLUS OPTION 

PART 1 
A GENCY C ONTACT INFORMATION 

Depar tmen t & d iv ision name::  Date:  
C o n tact name:  C o n tact title:  
Pho ne:    F ax:    E -mail:    

D istr ic t add ress:  
C ity :   Z IP  co de:  

F UND DETAILS 
F und name:  F und number:  

F und ty pe (general,  c apital,  r eserve, etc .): 
Balance in  the fund as o f the mo st r ecen t mo n th -end: $  

(A ) A mo unt o f fund balance to be in vested in  Option 1 o r  2 upon approval:  $  
(B) O v er a 10-y ear horizon, w hat is the cumulative amo unt you  expect to  add to  Option 1 o r  2?   $  
(C ) To tal o f lin es (A)  and (B):  $  

 

A DDITIONAL INFORMATION (CAN BE  SUBMITTED ON EXTRA SHEET) 
W hat business need do you  have that makes Option  1 o r 2 app rop riate fo r y our o rganization 
W h ich lo ng- term op tio n is the fund r equesting?         O p tio n 1 ( ladder)                       O p tio n 2 (C ustom) 

P lease attach  y our  10-year financial analysis that suppor ts (B)  above. 
A re there any c ircumstances that might delay o r r educe fu ture r evenue collections?  I f so, p lease desc ribe. 
A re there any c ircumstances that might ac celerate or  inc rease futu re expenditures? I f so , p lease describe. 
W hat impac t wou ld an  un realized  loss in  the r ange o f 3 to  15 per cent have o n the fund?   

F UND MANAGER -  AUTHORIZED S IGNATURE (REQUESTING POOL-
PLUS  O PTION) 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR -  A UTHORIZED 
S IGNATURE (REQUESTING POOL PLUS 
O PTION) 

S ignatu re:   S ignatu re:   

P r in t Name: P r in t Name: 

T itle:  T itle:  

Date:  Date:  
KING C OUNTY EXECUTIVE F INANCE COMMITTEE  REVIEW (COUNTY USE O NLY) 

Par t 1 signed?   Yes   No   P ar t 3 signed?   Yes   No   
Po o l-P lu s Option A pproved by EFC? Yes   No   Date A pp roved/Den ied : 

C o py sen t to  agency?  Yes   No   O p tio n approved:  Option 1 ( ladder)            O p tio n 2 
(C ustom)   

INSTRUCTIONS 
1.  A gency completes and  signs Part 1 above, and  emails it to :  Investmen t.Pool@kingcoun ty.gov. 
2.  King  C oun ty Treasu ry Sec tio n completes P ar t 2 and r eturns to  the agency. 
3.  The agency completes P art 3 and  r eturns the signed  document signed by both the Fund Manager and 

D iv isio n D irec to r document D ir ec tor that shows that they acknowledge and accept the r isks in volved  with 
the Po o l-Plus o p tion . O nce th is step  is co mpleted , the r equest w ill b e brought before the EFC fo r its 
co nsid eration.  I f the K ing C ounty Treasury Section does not r eceive a comp leted Part 3, the C ounty w ill 
assume the agency has dropped their r equest. 

 
Page 102 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  38 

 
A PPENDIX 2  (CONT INUT ED)  

KING COUNTY AGENCY APPLICATION 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF ALL RISKS  
P A R T  2  ( C O M P L ET ED  B Y  K I NG C O UNT Y  T R EA SUR Y  SEC T I O N)  

A GENCY INFORMATION  
A gency name:   F und Number: Date:  

20-YEA R INTEREST RA TE A NALYSIS F OR 5 A ND 10 YEAR TREASURY NOTES 

 

INTEREST RATE SHOCK A NALYS IS (RATES UP 100, 200, &  300 BA S IS POINTS) 

 

P A R T 3  ( COM PLETED B Y A GENC Y) 
The agency ac cepts the market r isk and the r isk that the agency could exper ience an  actual lo ss o r p rin cipal if it 
must sell an  in v estment before matu rity.  After r ely ing o n o ur o wn due d iligence and r eviewing  the b r ief analysis 
p r epared  by K ing  County Treasury Section  above, the agency r equests EFC approval o f o ur Pool-P lu s Investmen t 
O p tio n Applic atio n (select o ne):Yes   No  
The agency r equests that K ing Coun ty buy o nly secu rities that ar e issued by the U.S. Treasury o r ar e backed by 
the fu ll faith  and  c redit o f the United S tates be pur chased fo r the bond ladder(select o ne):Yes   No   
 
T he Department’s D irector must als o designate at  least 2  people that are authori zed to provide transaction 
ins tructions to the investment team. 
F UND MANAGER -  AUTHORIZED S IGNATURE 
(REQ UESTING POOL-PLUS  OPTION) 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR -  A UTHORIZED S IGNATURE  
(REQ UESTING POOL PLUS OPTION) 

S ignatu re:   S ignatu re:   

P r in t Name: P r in t Name: 

T itle:  T itle:  

Date:  Date:  

 
 

 
Page 103 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  39 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
ACCRUED INTEREST – Interest that has accumulated but has not yet been paid from 
the most recent interest payment date or issue date to a certain date. 
 
AGENCY ISSUES – Securities issued by federal agencies, those chartered by the 
federal government or Government Sponsored Enterprises that are considered to be 
backed by the federal government. See also Government Sponsored Enterprises. 
 
AMORTIZED COST – The original cost of the principal adjusted for the periodic 
reduction of any discount or premium from the purchase date until a specific date (also 
called “Book Value”). 
 
ASSET-BACKED COMMERCIAL PAPER (ABCP) is a form of commercial paper that is 
collateralized by other financial assets. ABCPs are typically short-term investments and 
are typically issued by a bank or other financial institution 
 
BANKERS ACCEPTANCE – Money market instrument created from transactions 
involving foreign trade. In its simplest and most traditional form, a bankers’ acceptance 
is merely a check, drawn on a bank by an importer or exporter of goods. 
 
BASIS POINT – A unit of measurement equal to 1/100 of 1 percent. As an example, the 
difference between a security yielding 3.25% and one yielding 3.20% is five basis 
points. 
 
BENCHMARK – An index or security used to compare the performance of a portfolio. 
 
BOND – A long-term debt instrument of a government or corporation promising 
payment of the original investment plus interest by a specified future date. 
 
BULLET – A colloquial term for a bond that cannot be redeemed, or called, prior to 
maturity. 
 
CALLABLE BOND – A bond in which all or a portion of its outstanding principal may be 
redeemed prior to maturity by the issuer under specified conditions. 
 
COLLATERALIZATION – Process by which a borrower pledges securities, property or 
other deposits for the purpose of securing the repayment of a loan and/or security. 
 
COLLATERALIZED CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT – An instrument representing a 
receipt from a bank for a deposit at a specified rate of interest for a specified period of 
time that is collateralized by the bank with securities.  
 
COMMERCIAL PAPER – Money Market instrument representing an unsecured short-
term promissory note of a corporation at a specified rate of return for a specified period 
of time. 
 
COUPON – The stated interest rate on a debt security that an issuer promises to pay. 
 

 
Page 104 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  40 

CUSTODIAN BANK – A specialized financial institution responsible for safeguarding a 
firm's or individual's financial assets and is not likely to engage in "traditional" 
commercial or consumer/retail banking. 
 
CREDIT QUALITY – An indication of risk that an issuer of a security will fulfill its 
obligation, as rated by a rating agency. 
 
CREDIT RATING – A standardized assessment, expressed in alphanumeric characters, 
of a company’s creditworthiness. 
 
CREDIT RISK – The risk to an investor that an issuer will default in the payment of 
interest and/or principal on a security. 
 
CUSIP – A unique identifier for a security developed by the Committee on Uniform 
Security Identification Procedures (CUSIP). The identifier is a nine-digit alphanumeric 
character. The first six characters identify the issuer, the following two identify the issue, 
and the final character is a check digit. 
 
DERIVATIVES – Securities which derive their value from that of another security or an 
underlying index, currency or other measure. Floating rate notes (also “floaters”) are not 
considered derivatives. 
 
DISCOUNT INSTRUMENTS – Securities that are sold at a discount to face value. 
 
DIVERSIFICATION – The practice or concept of investing in a range of securities by 
sector, maturity, asset class or credit quality in order to reduce and spread financial risk. 
 
DOLLAR WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY – The sum of the amount of each security 
investment multiplied by the number of days to maturity, divided by the total amount of 
security investments.  
 
DURATION – Is a measure of the price volatility of a portfolio and reflects an estimate of 
the projected increase or decrease in the value of that portfolio based upon a decrease 
or increase in the interest rates. A duration of 1.0 means that for every one percent 
increase in interest rates, the market value of the Portfolio would decrease by 1.0 
percent. 
 
EFFECTIVE DURATION - A duration calculation for bonds that incorporates the impact 
of any embedded options in the bond. For Bonds with embedded options (callable, 
putable, etc) effective duration provides a more accurate measure of a bond’s price 
movement when interest change because it takes into account changes in the bond’s 
cash flow that are related to the embedded options. 
 
GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS – Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and Federal 
Agencies. U.S. Treasuries are direct obligations of the Federal Government. Agencies 
are not direct obligations of the Federal Government, but involve Federal sponsorship or 
guarantees. 
 

 
Page 105 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  41 

GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPRISES (GSE’S) – Private, shareholder-owned 
companies with a relationship with government agencies. These agencies generally are 
viewed to have an implied guarantee of the U.S. government. These include: 

 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) 

 
HIGHLY LIQUID – The most eminent type of security that is easily converted to cash 
because there are many interested buyers and sellers to trade large quantities at a 
reasonable price.  
 
ILLIQUID – A security that is difficult to buy or sell or has a wide spread between the bid 
price and offer price in the secondary market. There are few buyers and sellers willing 
to trade large quantities at a reasonable price. 
 
INTEREST RATE RISK – The risk associated with declines or rises in interest rates 
which cause an investment in a fixed-income security to increase or decrease in value. 
Also called “Market Risk”. 
 
INVERSE FLOATERS – Floating rate notes which pay interest in inverse relationship to 
an underlying index. 
 
LIQUID – A security that is easily bought and sold because of the willingness of 
interested buyers and sellers to trade large quantities at a reasonable price. 
 
LONG-TERM – The term used to describe a security when the maturity is greater than 
one year. 
 
MARKET VALUE – An estimate of the value of a security at which the principal would 
be sold from a willing seller to a willing buyer at the date of pricing. 
 
MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT – A written contract covering all future 
transactions between the parties to repurchase—reverse repurchase agreements that 
establish each party’s rights in the transactions. 
MEDIUM TERM NOTES – These are Corporate Notes and Bank Notes that are debt 
obligations of banks, corporations, and insurance companies. They are issued at a 
specific rate of return for a specific period of time. 
 
MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUND – A mutual fund with investments directed in short-
term money market instruments only, which can be withdrawn daily without penalty. 
 
NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT – A Money Market instrument representing 
a receipt from a bank for a deposit at a specified rate of interest for a specified period of 
time that is traded in secondary markets. 
 
PAR – The stated maturity value, or face value, of a security. 
 

 
Page 106 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  42 

PASS-THROUGH SECURITIES – A debt instrument that reflects an interest in a 
mortgage pool, consumer receivables pool and equipment lease-backed pool that 
serves as collateral for a bond. 
 
POOL – In this context, the pooled monies of different government agencies 
administered by the Pool.  
 
PORTFOLIO VALUE – The total book value amount of all the securities held in the 
Pool.  
 
PRIMARY DEALER – A group of dealers and banks that can buy and sell securities 
directly with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. 
 
PRIVATE PLACEMENTS – Securities that do not have to be registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission because they are offered to a limited number of 
sophisticated investors. 
 
RANGE NOTES – Notes which pay interest only if the underlying index upon which it is 
benchmarked, falls within a certain range. 
 
REPURCHASE AGREEMENT – A repurchase agreement consists of two simultaneous 
transactions. One is the purchase of securities by an investor (i.e., the County), the 
other is the commitment by the seller (i.e. a broker/dealer) to repurchase the securities 
at the same price, plus interest, at some mutually agreed future date. 
 
REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENT – The mirror image of Repurchase 
Agreements. In this instance the King County Pool is the seller of securities to an 
investor (i.e. brokers). 
 
SAFEKEEPING – A custodian bank’s action to store and protect an investor’s securities 
by segregating and identifying the securities. 
SECONDARY MARKET – The secondary market, also known as the aftermarket, is the 
financial market where previously issued securities and financial instruments are bought 
and sold. 
 
SHORT-TERM – The term used to describe a security when the maturity is one year or 
less. 
 
TOTAL RETURN – The sum of all investment income plus changes in the capital value 
of a portfolio for a given period. 
 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY – The remaining average maturity of all securities 
held in a portfolio. See Dollar Weighted Average Maturity. 
 
WHEN-ISSUED SECURITIES – A security traded before it receives final trading 
authorization with the investor receiving the certificate/security only after the final 
approval is granted. 
 
YIELD – The gain, expressed as a percentage, which an investor derives from a 
financial asset. 

 
Page 107 of 223



KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICY 

Adopted July 26, 2017.  Replaces February 22, 2017.  43 

 
YIELD TO MATURITY – The percentage rate of return paid if the security is held to its 
maturity date. The calculation is based on the coupon rate, length of time to maturity, 
and market price. It assumes that coupon interest paid over the life of the security is 
reinvested at the same rate. 
 

 
Page 108 of 223



 
 

 

Cash Management Services Agreement 1-25-10 
Page 1 of 3 

KING COUNTY CASH MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day by and between King 

County, a home rule charter county in the State of Washington and the Northshore Parks 
and Recreation Service Area (NPRSA), a district in the State of Washington (hereinafter 
referred to as the "District"). 
 
 WHEREAS, the King County Treasurer has authority to manage funds that are in 
his or her possession in accordance with Chapter 36.29 RCW; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has authority to manage funds that are in its possession in 
accordance with its applicable statutory authority; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District participates in the King County Investment Pool pursuant 
to a separate Investment Pool Agreement; and 
   

WHEREAS, the District has requested King County to provide cash management 
services to the District, as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and provisions set forth herein, 
it is agreed by and between the District and King County as follows: 
 

I. SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 1. By entering into this Agreement, the District requests that King County 
provide cash management services for all of the District funds that are invested in the 
King County Investment Pool.  Cash management services shall be separate from the 
services provided by King County pursuant to the District’s Investment Pool Agreement.  
Cash management services shall also be separate from the services provided under King 
County’s banking agreement in which the District pays for its portion of separately 
invoiced banking services.  Cash management services that shall be provided by King 
County include, but are not limited to: (a) conducting daily sweeps of the District's cash 
balances using Zero Balance Accounts and automatically investing such balances in the 
King County Investment Pool, as specified in Section I(2) below; (b) crediting District 
bank deposits on date of deposit without regard to check float; (c) for Districts that issue 
their own warrants, charging District funds when warrants clear rather than when issued; 
(d) paying District warrants despite inadvertent negative balances of the District; (e) 
executing wire and ACH payment requests by the District; and (f) distributing property 
taxes in a manner that ensures the District receives its statutory share of the taxes on the 
same day the taxes are recorded as paid in King County’s property based system records.  

 
 2. All District funds designated for cash management services following the 
effective date of this Agreement, including but not limited to interest earnings on District 
funds invested in the King County Investment Pool, shall be automatically and fully 

 
Page 109 of 223



 
 

 

Cash Management Services Agreement 1-25-10 
Page 2 of 3 

invested in the King County Investment Pool.  The District warrants that consistent with 
RCW 36.29.020, any such funds which the District will automatically invest in the 
Investment Pool pursuant to this Agreement are not required for the District's immediate 
expenditure.  
 

3. The District agrees to pay to King County a variable fee for providing cash 
management services based on the average cash balance of the funds designated for cash 
management services and the overall performance of the King County Investment Pool.  
The fee shall be paid and collected in arrears in monthly deductions from the District's 
interest earnings or paid directly from the District funds held in the King County 
Investment Pool, as specified by King County.  King County shall determine the District's 
Monthly Fee Rate using the following formula: 1.5% multiplied by the investment pool 
rate of return for the month.  The resulting figure is converted to basis points.  The Monthly 
Fee Rate shall not exceed 8 basis points, regardless of the investment pool rate.  
 

4. King County shall calculate the amount of the District's Monthly Fee in 
accordance with the following formula:  the Monthly Fee Rate multiplied by the District's 
monthly average fund balance designated for cash management services, multiplied by the 
number of days in the month divided by the number of days in the year.  For example, if 
the investment pool rate of return for the month is 2%, the Monthly Fee Rate will be .03% 
(.015 x .02).  A fund with a $1,000,000 monthly average balance would pay $25.48 in a 
31-day month ($1,000,000 x .0003 x 31/365).  The dollar amount of the preceding 
calculation is capped at the equivalent of 8 basis points. 
 

II.    KING COUNTY IS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

 In providing services under this Contract, King County is an independent 
contractor, and neither it nor its officers, agents or employees are employees of the District 
for any purpose. 
 

III.     ADMINISTRATION 
 

 This Agreement shall be administered on behalf of King County by the King 
County Treasury Manager or his or her designee.  This Agreement shall be administered 
on behalf of the District by NPRSA Board Chair or his or her designee. 

 
IV.     TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 
 This Agreement shall be effective on the date it is executed.  This Agreement is 
ongoing until either party terminates per Section VI below. 
 

V.     AMENDMENTS 
 
 No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding unless agreed to in writing by each 
party. 
 

 
Page 110 of 223



 
 

 

Cash Management Services Agreement 1-25-10 
Page 3 of 3 

VI.     TERMINATION 
 
 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon at least 90 days written notice.  
Termination is effective on the first business day of a month that falls at least 90 days after 
written notification. 

 
VII.     ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
 This Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and any oral 
representation or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.  Any modifications 
to this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties.  Waiver of any default 
shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be 
construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless stated to be such 
through written approval by the County, which shall be attached to the original Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 
this ___ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
 
KING COUNTY 
 
_____________________________                _____________________ 
Ken Guy, Finance Director                               Dated 
 
______________________________________________________________________   
 
 
DISTRICT 
 
 
Northshore Parks and Recreation Service Area (NPRSA) 
Name of District 
 
_____________________________                 _____________________ 
By                                                                     Dated 
___Chair James McNeal_________ 
Title 
 

 
Page 111 of 223



 
 

Investment Services Agreement 1-25-10 
Page 1 of 8 

KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day by and between King 
County, a political subdivision of the state of Washington and home rule charter county 
and the Northshore Parks and Recreation Services Area (NPRSA), a special district in the 
State of Washington (hereinafter referred to as the "District"). 
 
 WHEREAS the King County Treasury Operations is authorized, but not required 
to offer investment pooling opportunities to districts located in the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Washington State Legislature has amended RCW 36.29.024 and 
modified the allowable fees that may be deducted by King County for investment pool 
expenses; and 
  
 WHEREAS King County has carefully considered the benefits and risks of 
continuing pooling funds for investments; and 
 
 WHEREAS King County has determined that continuing to offer pooled 
investments is a benefit to King County and a benefit to various special districts; and 

 
WHEREAS the District would like to continue having its funds pooled for 

investment by King County; and 
 

 WHEREAS this agreement is authorized by RCW 36.29.020, 36.29.022, and 
36.29.024; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and provisions herein, it is 
agreed by and between the District and King County as follows: 
 

I.     SCOPE OF WORK 
 
A. King County 
 

1. King County agrees to accept for investment a specific amount of funds 
the District has determined is not necessary for the District’s immediate expenditure.  
King County agrees to combine the designated District funds, King County funds and the 
funds of other special districts that have agreed to pool funds for investment in the King 
County Investment Pool (hereinafter "Pool").  The King County Investment Officer, or 
other individual duly authorized by King County, with oversight by the King County 
Treasury Manager and Finance and Business Operations Director, shall have sole 
authority and responsibility for determining and executing the specific investments for 
the Pool, consistent with state law and the investment policies adopted by the King 
County Executive Finance Committee.  King County has also established an Investment 
Pool Advisory Committee (Ordinance 16280) which shall provide input and advice to the 

 
Page 112 of 223



 
 

 Page 2 of 8 

Executive Finance Committee on agenda items that relate to investment policies, 
practices and fees.  
  

2. King County will be responsible for management of the Pool, including 
establishing the policies for the Pool, calculating interest earnings, allocating earnings 
and any realized losses among the District and other participants in the Pool, and 
determining and collecting Pool fees.   

 
 a. Pool Policies 
 
 The King County Executive Finance Committee, or its successor, shall 

adopt and may periodically amend the policies governing the Pool.  For reference, the 
enclosed “Exhibit A” provides a copy of the current adopted policies as of February 
2010.  Except in an emergency, the Executive Finance Committee, or its successor, will 
consult with the Investment Pool Advisory Committee at least 60 days prior to adopting 
or implementing changes to any policies governing the Pool.  

 
 b. Interest Earnings   

 
   (i) King County shall distribute interest earnings to the District 

based on the District's average daily cash balance maintained in the Pool as 
determined by King County.    King County shall calculate interest earnings by 
the 15th day of the following month; however, the actual distribution will be 
effective as of the first of the month.   

 
   (ii) King County shall calculate the monthly interest earnings 

rate used for Pool distributions using earnings of the Pool on an accrual basis.  
Earnings will be paid on an actual/actual day basis.  For example, a fund 
maintaining an average balance of $1,000,000 in a 31 day month for which a 
3.00% earnings rate is paid will receive $2,547.95 in interest for that month.  
($1,000,000  x  .03  x  31/365).  

 
  c. Pool Fees 
  

 (i) King County shall deduct from each District's funds an 
estimate for the actual expenses incurred for the Pool for the coming year.  An 
estimated annual fee for Pool participation shall be set initially at three and one-
half (3.5) basis points (.035%).  In accordance with RCW 36.29.024, this fee is 
intended to reflect King County's estimated direct expense and out-of-pocket cost 
of administering the Pool, plus a safety margin for unanticipated expenses.  This 
fee shall be applied monthly against the average cash balance of the District and 
collected monthly by King County, determined as follows:  .00035 multiplied by 
the average cash balance of the District during the month multiplied by the 
number of days in the month divided by 365.  For example, the monthly fee 
collected from the example above would be $29.73 (1,000,000  x  .00035  x  
31/365).  King County shall reevaluate the annual fee each year based on the 

 
Page 113 of 223



 
 

 Page 3 of 8 

rebate provided for the prior year and an estimate of actual expenses for the 
coming year.  

  
 (ii) If the amount of estimated fees collected within King 

County’s fiscal year exceeds the actual expense of administering the Pool for that 
fiscal year, King County shall rebate such excess amount to the District based on 
the District's percentage of the total average Pool cash balance for that year.  The 
rebate shall be made within three months of the close of King County’s fiscal 
year.  If the estimated Pool fee does not cover all of the actual expenses for the 
Pool, the County may collect from the District an additional amount that reflects 
the District's portion of deficiency, in the same manner that it would rebate any 
excess fees collected. 

 
 (iii) At the time King County rebates to the District any excess 

amount or collects from the District any deficiency amount of fees for 
administering the Pool for the prior year, King County shall provide an 
accounting of its actual expenses incurred for the Pool, as actual expenses are 
defined in RCW 36.29.024.   

 
  d. Reporting 
  
  King County will provide to the District a monthly statement showing the 
average cash balance maintained by the District, the Pool earnings rate, the District's 
earnings, the District’s realized losses (if any), and the fee incurred.  King County shall 
also provide a written explanation of the reason(s) for any realized loss. 
 
 
B. The District   
 
 1. Deposits and Investment Instructions 
 

a. If the District does not have a cash management agreement with 
the County, the District shall determine and provide notice to King County of the specific 
amount of funds it intends to invest in the Pool.  Unless King County adopts a contrary 
policy, deposit requests must be received before 8:30 am on the day of deposit for same 
day credit. 

 
b. If the District has a treasurer other than King County, the District 

shall provide notice of its intent to invest specific funds.  Unless King County adopts a 
contrary policy, the minimum notice shall be at least one (1) working day in advance of 
wiring funds fewer than five (5) million dollars for investing. This notification will occur 
by 12 p.m. Pacific Time.  Unless King County adopts a contrary policy, two (2) working 
days notice is required for deposits of five (5) million dollars or more into the Pool.   

 
c. The District shall designate a regular representative and at least 

one alternate representative who are authorized to direct the District's deposits and 

 
Page 114 of 223



 
 

 Page 4 of 8 

withdrawals from the Pool.  King County can rely upon the representations of these 
authorized District representatives concerning the District's investment transactions with 
King County. 

 
d. If the District does not have a cash management agreement with 

the County, then any fund that has a negative balance will be assessed an overdraft 
interest charge for each day that the fund was overdrawn, provided the negative balance 
was not due to investment losses or an accounting error made by King County.  The 
overdraft interest charge shall be equal to the prime rate charged by King County’s 
banking services provider in effect on the first day of the month in which the overdraft 
occurred.  For example, if a fund had a negative balance of $1 million on December 12 
and the prime rate on December 1 was 3.25%, the fund would be charged $89.04 
($1,000.000 x .0325 x 1/365).  The overdraft interest charge shall be effective on the day 
any District fund has a negative balance according to King County’s accounting system 
records.  
 

2. Withdrawals 
 

a. The District understands and agrees that its investment of funds in 
the Pool is a long term investment. The District shall not withdraw its funds from the 
Pool unless they are needed for immediate expenditure.   
 

b. If the District has executed a cash management agreement with 
King County, the District may withdraw funds from the Pool for immediate expenditure 
by submitting a warrant or electronic payment request, which will reduce the principal 
balance in the fund.   

 
c. If the District does not have a cash management agreement with 

King County, the District shall notify King County in writing when invested funds are 
needed for immediate expenditure and shall specify the amounts and date the funds are 
needed.   The District shall provide King County prior written notice for withdrawals.  
Unless King County formally adopts a contrary policy, the minimum notice to be 
provided for withdrawals is:   

 
   i. One (1) working day in advance for amounts up to five (5) 

million dollars,  
 
   ii. Two (2) working days for amounts between five (5) and 

fifty (50) million dollars, and  
 
   iii. Ten (10) working days notice for amounts over fifty (50) 

million dollars.  
 

This notice shall occur by 12 p.m. Pacific Time on the appropriate day. 
 

 
Page 115 of 223



 
 

 Page 5 of 8 

II.    DISTRICT COVENANTS 
 
 The District warrants and covenants that its governing body has duly authorized 
the District's participation in the Pool.  At the time the District authorizes King County to 
invest its funds in the Pool, the District warrants that those funds are not required for the 
District's immediate expenditure, consistent with RCW 36.29.020. 

 
III.    KING COUNTY IS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 
 In providing services under this Agreement, King County is an independent 
contractor, and neither it nor its officers, agents or employees are employees of the 
District for any purpose. 
 

IV.     DISCLAIMER 
 
 King County makes no promises, either written or oral, regarding performance of 
the Pool investments.  King County will attempt to obtain the highest yields available 
within investment policy; however, at times there may be higher yields available in other 
investment vehicles.  The District understands that the Pool will be operated in 
accordance with Pool policies that focus on preservation of capital, liquidity and a 
predictable market rate of return, but that no investment is perfectly safe and losses of 
interest or principal invested may occur through no fault of King County or its 
representatives.   
 

V.     ADMINISTRATION 
 

 This agreement shall be administered by the King County Treasury Manager or 
his or her designee. 
 

VI.     TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement shall be effective on the date it is executed.  This Agreement 
shall renew automatically each year on the District’s Anniversary Date (as defined 
below) until either party terminates per Section VIII below. 
 

VII.     AMENDMENTS 
 
 No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding unless agreed to in writing by each 
party. 
 

VIII.     TERMINATION 
 
 King County may terminate this agreement upon 90 days written notice.  The 
District may terminate this Agreement upon at least 45 days  written notice prior to the 
District’s anniversary date.  For purposes of this section, the District’s Anniversary Date 
shall be _________________________.  Notwithstanding this requirement, the County in 

 
Page 116 of 223



 
 

 Page 6 of 8 

its sole discretion may consider a request for expedited termination under extraordinary 
circumstances.   
 

VIII.     FUND PARTICIPATION EXCEPTIONS 
 

 The District may, by written request, exclude certain District funds from the Pool. 
 

IX.     ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and any oral 
representation or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.  Any 
modifications to this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties.  Waiver of 
any default shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and 
shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless stated to 
be such through written approval by the County, which shall be attached to the original 
Agreement. 
 

 
Page 117 of 223



 
 

 Page 7 of 8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 
this ___ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
 
 
KING COUNTY 
 
 
_____________________________                _____________________ 
Ken Guy, Finance Director                               Dated 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________   
 
DISTRICT 
 
 
 
Northshore Parks and Recreation Service Area 
Name of District 
 
 
_Board Char James McNeal ____                 _____________________ 
By                                                                     Dated 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Title 
 

 
Page 118 of 223



 
 

 Page 8 of 8 

 
Exhibit “A” 

 
KING COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL POLICIES 

 
Page 119 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5E 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator (Presenter) 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Minute Order # MO-20-03, approving a Facility Upgrade Request to 
add a Food Pantry in the Senior Center 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider if the NPRSA should approve a request from 
the Northshore Senior Center to modify the facility to build out a Food Pantry.  
 
If approved, it has the potential to impact the buildings the NPRSA is responsible 
for by allowing the tenant to make facility improvements.  

  
HISTORY: DATE ACTION 

MARCH 29, 2016 NPRSA Board approves contract with Northshore Senior 
Center 

 
The current agreement in which the NPRSA named the Northshore Senior Center 
as the “Operator” of the buildings owned by the NPRSA, states the Operator may 
make additional improvements or alterations to the Centers, subject to prior 
written approval from the NPRSA Board. This stipulation only applies to 
improvements over $1,000. The Operator is responsible for the cost of all 
improvements or alterations.  

  
DISCUSSION: In response to the COVID-19 public health crisis, the Northshore Senior Center is 

serving around 700 people weekly from a pop-up food pantry located in the 
parking lot. Prior to COVID-19 the Senior Center food pantry served around 30 
people per week. The food pantry is currently housed in the lobby of the Senior 
Center after it quickly outgrew the small storage closet used previously. The 
Northshore Senior Center is submitting a facilities request to build out space 
within the Senior Center building for a proper food pantry. The cost associated 
with the build out would be covered by a CARES Act grant passed through the 
City of Bothell for COVID-19 response in the community. The table below lists the 
proposed modifications and estimated costs.  
 
 

 
Page 120 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5E 
 

Item 
Installation of handwashing sink (plumbing already present) 
Shelving 
Computer (used to intake and track data) 
Build out of reception desk/counter 
Commercial refrigerator 
Commercial freezer 
Partial replacement of flooring to allow easy wash 
Other misc. furniture 
ESTIMATED TOTAL                                                                  $22,000 

 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item has no direct fiscal impact to the NPRSA. 

  
ATTACHMENTS: This item has no attachments. 

  
RECOMMENDED  

ACTION: 
Move to approve Minute Order # MO-20-03, approving a Facility Upgrade 
Request to add a Food Pantry in the Senior Center 

 
  

 
Page 121 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5F 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director (Presenter) 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Minute Order # MO-20-04, approving Outstanding Repairs 
completed by the Northshore Senior Center and approving necessary Vouchers 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider if they should approve or deny 
reimbursement to the Northshore Senior Center for repairs they completed and 
paid for. 
 
If approved, the Board will have clarified any previous actions taken by the Board 
agreeing to reimburse the Northshore Senior Center for the record. Approval 
would also direct the Executive Director to use levy monies to reimburse the 
Northshore Senior Center.   

  
HISTORY: At nearly every recent meeting of the Board, there has been conversation about 

what repairs are needed for the buildings and property and how the NPRSA was 
going to fund them. Staff have been unable to find clear records of which exact 
costs the Board agreed to reimburse through previous meeting minutes, or when 
specific items have been brought to the Board.  

  
DISCUSSION: Prior to passage of the levy, the Board of the NPRSA did not have sufficient 

revenue to cover the costs for necessary capital repairs to the building and 
property under its ownership. Per the tenant agreement with the Northshore 
Senior Center, the Northshore Senior Center is responsible for all maintenance 
to the building and property other than capital maintenance which is the 
responsibility of the NPRSA. Inevitably, the Northshore Senior Center has had to 
cover the costs of capital maintenance during the time the NPRSA did not have 
sufficient funding. The Board has previously discussed reimbursing the 
Northshore Senior Center for these repairs, yet there is lack of clarity in the 
record on the exact costs the Board approved. The memo in Attachment 2 
outlines the procurement process for the costs the Board is now being asked to 
consider and Attachment 1 is the Voucher Packet with pertinent invoices and 
back-up related to reimbursement of the following: 
 

 
Page 122 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5F 
 

 
Description of Work  Cost  

Sewer Line Repairs  $32,565.75  

Fire Alarm System Compliance  $31,152.03  
Bioswale Regrading  $26,334.00 

TOTAL  $90,051.78 
  

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item is included in the Adopted 2020 Budget and the budgeted value of 
$1,200,000 in Capital Outlay is sufficient to fund this item.  This item obligates 
the Board to a one-time reimbursement to the Northshore Senior Center for 
expenditures totaling up to $90,051.78.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Voucher Packet for Repairs  

Att-2. Memo on Capital Expenses for Reimbursement 
  

RECOMMENDED  
ACTION: 

Move to approve Minute Order # MO-20-04, approving a one-time 
reimbursement expenditure to the Northshore Senior Center for capital repairs 
to the sewer line, fire system, and bioswale in the total amount of $90,051.78 
and approve the associated voucher to process payment. 

 
  

 
Page 123 of 223



 
Page 124 of 223



 
Page 125 of 223



 
Page 126 of 223



 
Page 127 of 223



 
Page 128 of 223



 
Page 129 of 223



 
Page 130 of 223



 
Page 131 of 223



 
Page 132 of 223



 
Page 133 of 223



 
Page 134 of 223



 
Page 135 of 223



 
Page 136 of 223



 
Page 137 of 223



 
Page 138 of 223



 
Page 139 of 223



 
Page 140 of 223



 
Page 141 of 223



 
Page 142 of 223



 
Page 143 of 223



 
Page 144 of 223



 
Page 145 of 223



 
Page 146 of 223



 
Page 147 of 223



 
Page 148 of 223



 
Page 149 of 223



 
Page 150 of 223



 
Page 151 of 223



 
Page 152 of 223



 
Page 153 of 223



 
Page 154 of 223



 
Page 155 of 223



 
Page 156 of 223



 
Page 157 of 223



 
Page 158 of 223



 
Page 159 of 223



 
 
 

 
 
DATE: August 19, 2020  
 
TO: Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 
 
FROM: Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT: Capital Repairs Reimbursement to the Northshore Senior Center 
 
 
SUMMARY 
This memo documents capital repairs completed and paid for by the Northshore Senior Center 
(NSC) from January 2019 to June 2020. According to the agreement between the NSC and the 
NPRSA, the NSC is responsible for the regular maintenance of the buildings and property it 
leases from the NPRSA while the NPRSA is responsible for any capital repairs to the buildings or 
property. In total, the NSC has paid for $90,051.78 in projects that staff consider to be capital 
repairs and, therefore, the responsibility of the NPRSA. These projects include emergency 
repairs to the sewer lines, repairs and replacements to be compliant with the Fire Code, and re-
grading the bioswales on the property. The NPRSA has not paid for any of these repairs. 
 
As the incoming Administering Agency for the NPRSA, City of Bothell staff found it prudent to 
document these costs, procurement processes. The costs incurred by the NSC are set forth in 
this memo and documented in invoices in the Attachments. At the time these repairs were 
needed, the Board had not yet adopted a Purchasing Policy, nor was there a sufficient revenue 
stream for the NPRSA to cover these costs directly. We feel the NSC staff did the best they 
could to procure services and award contracts given these barriers. We also recognize that 
state laws regarding public work procurement may not have been fully followed for some of 
these projects. Moving forward, we will ensure state laws and best practices are upheld by 
adopting and following a Purchasing Policy and creating a sound internal control environment.  
 
Table 1. Repairs Completed by the Northshore Senior Center for Reimbursement 
 

Description of Work Cost 
Sewer Line Repairs $32,565.75 
Fire Alarm System Compliance $31,152.03 
Bioswale Regrading $26,334.00 

TOTAL $90,051.78 
 
CAPITAL REPAIR #1 – SEWER LINES 

 MEMORANDUM 
NPRSA Administrative Services 

 

 
Page 160 of 223



At the June 17, 2020 meeting of the Board, the Executive Director of the NSC informed the 
Board of a break in the sewer line resulting in sewage flooding several areas of the Senior 
Center. The Board declared this to be an emergency given its life-safety implications, waived 
requirements for competitive bidding, and directed the NSC Executive Director to award the 
contract for the emergency repairs.  
 
Table 2. Emergency Repairs to the Sewer Line 
 

Description of Work Cost 
Cable floor drain through trap, truck ops $301.18 
Emergency response $1,424,50 
Cable cleanout, sewage stoppage $435.34 
5’ spot repair in cafeteria $9,288.71 
5’ spot repair in front of elevator $21,116.02 

TOTAL $32,565.75 
 
The emergency repairs to the sewer line total $32,565.75. Prevailing Wage requirements still 
apply, and the NSC ensured the contractor paid prevailing wages, as documented in the 
invoices in Attachment 1. 
 
 
CAPITAL REPAIR #2 – FIRE ALARM SYSTEM COMPLIANCE 
The 2019 Fire Inspection of the Northshore Senior Center building returned with requirements 
to upgrade the fire alarm system panel, replace the water heater, and replace the system that 
trips the rolling fire door to close in the event of a fire in the kitchen. The inspection report 
rendered this work to be urgent and necessary for the NSC to continue operations.  
 
Table 3. Repairs to Fire Systems 
 

Description of Work Cost 
Replace Fire Alarm System Panel $20,289.51 
Replace Water Heater $7,894.70 
Repair to Fire Fly Door $1,538.91 
Labor $1,428.91 

TOTAL $31,152.03 
 
Staff at the NSC sought at least three bids for the Fire Alarm System Panel contract, however, 
only one contractor was deemed a responsive bidder and was therefore awarded the contract. 
In total, staff contacted Fire Chief Equipment (awarded the contract), Cosco Fire Protection, 
Simplex Grinnell, and Colombia Fire. These efforts are detailed in Attachment 1. At the time, 

 
Page 161 of 223



NSC staff were unaware of prevailing wage requirements and therefore it is not documented 
whether prevailing wages were paid.  
 
CAPITAL REPAIR #3 – BIOSWALE REGRADING 
After the City of Bothell conducted a storm water system inspection in January and February of 
2019, the City issued the NSC an order to maintain the storm water systems, including the 
bioswales, near the Senior Center and the Adult Day Health Center. Before the order to 
maintain was issued, the NSC was unaware that maintaining the vegetative growth on the 
bioswales was part of their regular maintenance responsibilities and therefore covered the 
costs for removing the vegetation. In the process of clearing the vegetation, however, it was 
discovered the bioswale near the Adult Day Health Center was not constructed properly and 
was not draining.  City of Bothell Staff believe this discovery altered the nature of the project 
and ask the Board to consider reimbursing the NSC for the total cost of the regrading, 
$26,334.00. It is worth noting that despite regrading efforts, it is possible more work will have 
to be done. 
 
Table 4. Bioswale Regrading Expenses 
 

Description of Work Cost 
Labor Deposit 1 $6,740.00 
Labor Deposit 2 $3,416.00 
Bioswale regrading (Part 2) $5,978.00 
Bioswale regrading (Part 3) $10,200.00 

TOTAL $26,334.00 
 
NSC Staff attempted to receive multiple bids but only one contractor was deemed responsive 
and responsible and was therefore awarded the contract – Bodine Construction. Staff 
contacted several other contractors including Whirlwind Clean and Green, Northwest 
Cascade/Flohawks, and Ventilation Power. These efforts are detailed in Attachment 1. At the 
time, NSC staff was unaware of prevailing wage requirements, and so it is not documented 
whether prevailing wages were paid.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Att-1: Procurement Documents from NSC 

 
Page 162 of 223



 
Page 163 of 223



 
Page 164 of 223



 
Page 165 of 223



 
Page 166 of 223



 
Page 167 of 223



 
Page 168 of 223



 
Page 169 of 223



 
Page 170 of 223



 
Page 171 of 223



 
Page 172 of 223



 
Page 173 of 223



 
Page 174 of 223



 
Page 175 of 223



 
Page 176 of 223



 
Page 177 of 223



 
Page 178 of 223



 
Page 179 of 223



 
Page 180 of 223



 
Page 181 of 223



 
Page 182 of 223



 
Page 183 of 223



 
Page 184 of 223



Stop! Look! Think before you click! This message originated from outside the City of Bothell 
network. Use caution when clicking links or opening attachments. 

Hi Wes, 
Per our conversation at the NPRSA meeting last week, I’ve attached the bids we received for the work 
done last year.  You’ll see in the email below some additional information regarding our attempts over 
the course of several months to obtain bids which in some cases never came to fruition.  Specifically the 
invoices are as follows: 

ITEM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT COMMENTS 
Fire fly door $1,538.91 Approved for reimbursement by 

NPRSA 
Fire fly door (part 2) $1,428.91 Approved for reimbursement by 

NPRSA 
Fire Panel Replacement $20,289.51 Approved for reimbursement by 

NPRSA 
Water heater replacement $7,984.70 Approved by reimbursement by 

NPRSA 
TOTAL $31,152.03 

In addition to these above, I’d like to advocate that the following expenses paid for by the Northshore 
Senior Center be reimbursed.  The below costs relate to work required to repair the “bioswales” outside 
of our facilities.  As work proceeded it became clear that the bioswales were not constructed properly at 
their onset, resulting in the significant work that was required.  I see this as a capital expense that 
should have been handled by NPRSA and not the responsibility of NSC as the tenant.  Conversely, I think 
that the removal of vegetation as required WAS the responsibility of NSC and is not an expense we are 
asking for reimbursement of. 

ITEM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT COMMENTS 
Bioswale regrading $6,740.00 
Bioswale regrading (part 2) $5,879.00 
Bioswale regrading (part 3) $10,200.00 
TOTAL $22,819.00 
Vegetation removal $7,139.00 NOT REQUESTING 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR THIS 
AMOUNT 

Thanks Wes! 
Brooke 

From: Brooke Knight <BrookeK@mynorthshore.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, January 29, 2020 8:24 PM 
To: Wes Phillips <Wes.Phillips@NPRSA.onmicrosoft.com> 
Cc: Michael Tabor <mynprsa@gmail.com>; James McNeal <james.mcneal@bothellwa.gov>; Kellye 
Mazzoli <kellye.mazzoli@bothellwa.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Copies of bids and invoices for NPRSA work 

 
Page 185 of 223



  
Brooke Knight, CEO 
Northshore Senior Center 
Direct: 425-286-1023 
Main: 425-487-2441 
 
From: Harry Horst 
Sent: Tuesday, January 28, 2020 9:17 AM 
To: Brooke Knight <BrookeK@mynorthshore.org> 
Cc: Zorna Kimball <ZornaK@mynorthshore.org> 
Subject: RE: Work on Fire Panel and fire door 
  
Hi Brooke, please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks 
  
Bioswale (2) 
You were going to try one more time to get another bid about a week or so ago.  If you did, let’s 
review/compare.  If not, let’s just document your attempts (a brief summary and/or copies of your email 
communication to them will suffice) and move forward with the bids we have.  Let’s move forward. 
Bodine Construction was clearly  the most professional and responsive company I worked with in 
attempting to obtain bids for this work. In addition to them, I received one other estimate for the 
Bioswale and storm drains, but it was incomplete. Whirlwind Clean and Green  provided an estimate for 
the NSC side, and eventually the ADH side. I made contact with them initially on 1/29/19 and it took 
them until 4/15/19 to provide the one proposal. They stated they would provide an estimate for the 
ADH Bioswale also, and did so in early May.  Their estimates were  lower than Bodine Construction, but 
were incomplete and they were not very responsive to my inquires. I am not sure if they even looked 
closely at the property and despite my request they never actually met with me. I did not feel very 
confident in their performance and felt that their estimates did not represent what the actual cost for 
the projects would ultimately be. Their proposals were estimates, not hard bids and were  subject to 
change. As it turned out this would have certainly been the case. There were several issues encountered 
during the project that required additional work. The most significant being that the ADH bioswale 
appeared to have never been properly completed during the  initial construction. This swale apparently 
never drained correctly, or functioned properly as a dry swale and had to be ultimately  reclassified by 
the city during the scope of this work as a wet bioswale. I also met with Ventilation Power on 1/29/19, 
and again in March, but received nothing back from them. In addition, I met with Northwest Cascade/ 
Flohawks on 4/3/19 received nothing back from them either. All of these contractors are on the list 
provided to us from the city, and while the city will not recommend a specific contractor it was clear 
that they hold Bodine Constriction in good regard.  I also met with Brookstone, a landscape contractor 
and received a bid for cleaning the Bioswales, but this did not include the storm drains. This option 
included removal of the trees and clearing  the vegetation from the swales. We would then have needed 
one of the other contractors to  clear and clean the storm drains and ensure the swales were functioning 
properly. 
  
Fire Control Panel 
You attempted to get three bids and reached out several times but only got one bid.  Please document 
(again very briefly) attempts to get other bids.  James McNeal connected us with one final option late 
last week.  If you don’t hear from them by tomorrow let’s move forward with the one bid we have. 
I met with three companies, but received only one bid back for the FACP. I met with Fire Chief 
Equipment on 1/16/19 and received a proposal from them within two weeks. I also met with Cosco Fire 

 
Page 186 of 223

mailto:BrookeK@mynorthshore.org
mailto:ZornaK@mynorthshore.org


Protection on 1/28/19 and despite contacting them several times in follow up I did not received a bid 
from them. In addition, I met with Simplex Grinnell on 1/24/19 and have received nothing back. I have 
left several messages asking for these  bids , but have received nothing back, nor were my calls 
returned.  In addition,  I contact Columbia Fire on 4/19/19, a company recommended by the Chamber. I 
spoke to a person there and left a message for Brian, but did not receive a call back. Fire Chief 
Equipment being the only contractor that responded was awarded the contract. 
  
Please note: Email exchanges may be public records and subject to disclosure. 
Reply 
Forward 

BK 

 
Page 187 of 223



 
 
 

INVOICE 
 

Date Invoice # 

8/14/2020 NPR 2020-02 
AMENDED 

 
BILL TO 
 

REMIT TO 

Northshore Parks & Recreation Service Area 
C/O City of Bothell 
Attn:  Kellye Mazzoli 

 
Northshore Senior Center 
10201 E. Riverside Dr 
Bothell, WA 98011-3708 
 

 
QTY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

1 
 
 

Regrading of bioswale to meet City of 
Bothell requirements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$26,334.00 

 
Total Due $26,334.00  

 
 
 

 
Page 188 of 223



 
Page 189 of 223



 
Page 190 of 223



 
Page 191 of 223



 
Page 192 of 223



 
Page 193 of 223



 
Page 194 of 223



 
Page 195 of 223



 
Page 196 of 223



 
Page 197 of 223



 
Page 198 of 223



 
Page 199 of 223



 
Page 200 of 223



 
Page 201 of 223



 
Page 202 of 223



 
Page 203 of 223



 
Page 204 of 223



 
Page 205 of 223



 
Page 206 of 223



 
Page 207 of 223



 
Page 208 of 223



 
Page 209 of 223



 
Page 210 of 223



 
Page 211 of 223



 
Page 212 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5G 
 

   
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director (Presenter) 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Discussion of Amending the NPRSA Bylaws 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to discuss topics related to amending the current 
version of the NPRSA Board Bylaws.  
 
Staff would like to discuss options to update your current Board Bylaws to more 
accurately reflect the current protocol and needs of the Board in light of recent 
organizational changes. 

  
HISTORY: According to research, it appears that the NPRSA Board most likely adopted its 

current Bylaws in 2002 and amended them most recently on October 4, 2006. 
  

DISCUSSION: Previous versions of the current Board Bylaws were found, but not signed or 
dated.  Due to this, Staff began reviewing the Bylaws to bring forward to the 
NPRSA Board for official action and signature.  During this review, Staff 
recognized that the Bylaws no longer reflect the accepted practices and protocol 
of the current Board.  Additionally, since the Board has recently entered into an 
Administrative Services agreement with the City, this presents an opportune 
time to fully review the Bylaws and consider other additional modifications 
where appropriate. 
 
Staff would like to begin with a discussion of possible revisions the Board would 
prefer to see a proposal on.  Staff has identified the following topics to consider, 
however the Board may propose additional: 

· Adding a Vice-Chair position 
· Increasing terms of Officers to two (2) years 
· Adding rotation of the Chair position among all agencies 
· Aligning the terms of Officers with the calendar year or some other 

month 

 
Page 213 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5G 
 

   
 

· Adding a section addressing the Executive Director position, staff 
· Updating the attendance via speakerphone section to include virtual 

methods of attendance (when required/ possible) and reducing current 
restrictions on use of speakerphone 

· Adding a section addressing Advisory and Board Committees 
· Address any updates from a legal or best practices perspective, ie. Adding 

a section on Definitions and Conflicting Provisions, Location, Calling 
Meetings, Calling Emergency Meetings, etc. 

· Add additional restrictions on amendments to the Bylaws, such as stricter 
notice requirements or supermajority vote for approval 

 
The Board is asked to consider these topics and provide Staff direction to prepare 
a future agenda item for action. 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item does not have a financial impact. 

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Current NPRSA Board Bylaws 

  
RECOMMENDED  

ACTION: 
This item is for discussion by the Board and for Staff to receive direction.  Staff 
will prepare a future agenda item for Board action based upon the direction 
received. 

 

  

 
Page 214 of 223



BYLAWS 
OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 

NORTHSHORE PARK & RECREATION SERVICE AREA 
 
1.  AUTHORITY 
 
This governing board (hereafter called the “Board”) is hereby formed pursuant to approval of the 
voters on September 20, 1988, of the Northshore Park and Recreation Service Area (hereinafter 
called the “PRSA”), a quasi-municipal corporation with taxing authority under Article 7, Sections 
1 and 2 of the Washington State Constitution, formed for the purposes authorized by RCW Chapter 
36.68, and pursuant to the interlocal agreement entered into by King County, Snohomish County, 
City of Bothell, City of Kenmore and the City of Woodinville for this purpose. 
 
II.  MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Board shall be composed of two King County Councilmembers, one Snohomish County 
Councilmember, two City of Bothell Councilmembers, one City of Kenmore Councilmember, and 
one City of Woodinville Councilmember, who shall be selected according to the interlocal 
agreement.  Each member shall have one vote.  No proxy voting shall be allowed. 
 
III.  CHAIR 
 
The Board shall elect the chair from among its members by a majority vote.  The chair shall serve 
a one-year term, starting in October of each year, except that the initial chair may serve a term 
from September, 1988 through October, 1989.  In the event that the chair resigns from office or is 
replaced on the Board, a new chair shall be elected to fill the remainder of the term. 
 
The Chair shall be responsible for establishing the agenda for each meeting and convening and 
presiding over each meeting.  In the absence of the Chair, the Board may elect a pro tem chair to 
serve for the meeting.  The Chair shall be authorized to sign contracts on behalf of the PRSA, 
provided that all contracts must be approved by a majority of the Board. 
 
IV.  SECRETARY 
 
The Board shall select and appoint a person who is deemed by the Board to be qualified, to be the 
official secretary of the Board.  The secretary will attend all meetings, shall keep official minutes 
and shall perform all other duties assigned by the Board. 
 
V.  RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
A. The Board shall be responsible for administration of the affairs of the PRSA and for 
performing the responsibilities authorized by RCW Chapter 36.68 and RCW Chapter 67.20, 
including but not limited to the following: 
 
 1. Hiring employees 
 2. Entering into contracts 

 
Page 215 of 223



 3. Purchasing or leasing property 
 4 Assessing fees or charges 
 5 Purchasing 
 6 Submit ballot propositions for issuance of bonds or tax levies 
 
B. The Board may choose to contract with another jurisdiction or other entity to obtain 
services necessary to carry out any activities of the PRSA. 
 
C. The Board shall adopt an annual budget in December of each year. 
 
D. The signatures of two Board members shall be required to authorize payment of invoices. 

All seven Board Members are eligible signatories for payment authorization. 
 
 
VI.  MEETINGS 
 
A. The Board shall meet no less than yearly.  Meetings shall be called by the Chair with no 
less than ten days written notice to the members of the date, time, place and agenda of the meeting.  
An emergency meeting may be called by three members of the Board with three days written notice 
to all members and telephone confirmation.  All meetings shall be open to the public except for 
those exclusions allowed in the State of Washington Open Public meetings Act. 
 
B. Attendance via Speakerphone (AVS).  From time to time, a Board Member will not be able 
to be physically present at a Board meeting, but will want to be involved in the discussion and/or 
decision on agenda items.  Attendance via speakerphone should be the rare exception and AVS is 
limited to two times per year per Board Member.  The procedure and guidelines for permitting a 
Board Member to attend a Council meeting via speaker phone are as follows. 
 1) Items on the agenda are time sensitive, and AVS is needed for a quorum; 
 2) Items on the agenda re of very high importance to the Board Member that cannot 
be physically present; 
 3) The Board Member attending via speakerphone must be able to hear the discussion 
taking place during the meeting and must be able to be heard by all present at the meeting. 
 
C. In cases of natural disaster, war, or other public emergency it may be necessary for all 
members of the Board to attend a meeting by speakerphone.  The Board Chair, or in the case of 
the inability to contact the Chair, any Board officer, may call for such a meeting.  Notice 
requirements shall remain as above.  Any Board Member or member of the public may choose to 
attend the meeting place where the speakerphone is located. 
 
(Section VI. Amended by the addition of subsections B. and C., October 4, 2006) 
 
 
VII.  QUORUM 
 
The presence of four members of the Board at a meeting shall constitute a quorum. 
 

 
Page 216 of 223



VIII.  RESOLUTIONS 
 
The board may adopt by a majority vote of the Board resolutions as needed, provided that notice 
of the proposed resolution complies with the requirements of Section V of these bylaws.  An 
emergency resolution may be adopted without the notice required in Section V of these bylaws by 
an affirmative vote of five members of the Board. 
 
IX.  RECORDS 
 
A permanent location shall be established for maintenance and storage of correspondence, minutes 
and other record of the Board.  Until and unless changed by a majority vote of the Board, the 
permanent storage location shall be the King County Office of Records and Elections. 
 
X.  ROBERTS’ RULES 
 
Except as provided herein or as amended by a majority vote of the Board, all business shall be 
conducted according to Roberts’ Rules of Order. 
  

 
Page 217 of 223



XI.  AMENDMENT 
 
These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the Board. 
 
 
Adopted this _______ day of _____________________, 2002. 
 
Board Members 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Carolyn Edmonds, King County   Sandy Guinn, City of Bothell 
 
_______________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Kathy Lambert, King County    Tim Olsen, City of Bothell 
 
_______________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 Dave Gossett, Snohomish County    Elodie Morse, City of Kenmore  
 
_______________________________________ 
Robert Miller, City of Woodinville     
 

 
Page 218 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 5H 
 

   
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Director (Presenter) 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Consideration of Resolution # R-20-03, authorizing use of digital or electronic 
signature technology 

 
 

   POLICY 
CONSIDERATION: 

This item asks the Board to consider a Resolution authorizing the use of digital 
and electronic signature technology. If approved, it will allow staff and Board 
members to sign official documents of the NPRSA using digital signature 
technology, rather than “wet” ink signatures. 

  
HISTORY: This is a new item for Board consideration.  

  
DISCUSSION: As part of the terms of the recently adopted Interlocal Agreement for 

Administrative Services, the NPRSA may benefit from technology systems used 
by the City of Bothell. The City of Bothell recently adopted digital signature 
technology which has provided many business efficiencies in conducting 
business, especially during the Governor’s Stay Home order. This item asks the 
Board to consider adopting a Resolution authorizing the Board and staff to use 
digital and electronic signature technology to conduct official business of the 
NPRSA.  

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item does not have a financial impact. This service is already included in the 
agreement between the NPRSA and City of Bothell for administrative services. 

  
ATTACHMENTS: Att-1. Resolution # R-20-03, authorizing use of digital and electronic 

signature technology.  
  

RECOMMENDED  
ACTION: 

Move to approve Resolution # R-20-03, authorizing use of digital and electronic 
signature technology. 

 

 

 
Page 219 of 223



 Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION # R-20-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE NORTHSHORE PARKS AND 
RECREATION SERVICE AREA, WASHINGTON AUTHORIZING THE 
USE OF DIGITAL AND ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE TECHNOLOGY. 
 

  
 
WHEREAS, an electronic signature is an electronic sound, symbol, or 

process attached to or logically associated with a contract or other record and 
executed or adopted by a person with the intent to sign the record as if a signature 
were affixed by hand; and 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 19.360.020 authorizes an agency to utilize electronic 

signatures in the conduct of governmental affairs and other transactions and to 
establish a method and process for such use by ordinance, resolution, policy, or rule; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, using electronic signature technologies can benefit the Board of 

the NPRSA by decreasing the Board's reliance on paper transactions and physical 
documents, lessening administrative demands, and improving efficiency, thereby 
saving time and reducing the costs associated with conducting NPRSA business. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF THE NPRSA, WASHINGTON, DOES 

RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Board finds it to be in the public interest to allow the use of 

electronic records and electronic signatures for NPRSA business to the fullest extent 
allowed by law. 

 

Section 2. The Board directs the Executive Director to adopt any necessary 
administrative policies or processes to implement the use of electronic signatures 
by the Board consistent with this resolution and in compliance with the provisions of 
Chapter 19.360 RCW. 

 

Section 3. Except as required otherwise by law, an electronically signed 
document shall be deemed the equivalent of a document signed with an original 
written, affixed by hand, or "wet" signature provided the individual or entity signing 
the document has complied with the provisions of this resolution and NPRSA policy 
regarding such electronic signature. 

 

 
Page 220 of 223



 Page 2 of 3 

Section 4. The Board authorizes the Chair, Executive Director, and their 
designees to affix electronic signatures to electronic records or accept such 
electronic signatures and further authorizes the Executive Director or designee to 
approve use of an electronic signature for official public business conducted by 
the NPRSA, provided all of the following: 

 
A. The electronic signature is affixed or accepted in accordance with the 

NPRSA's electronic signature policy to be adopted by the Executive 
Director. 

B. The individual is authorized to sign the document. 

C. The individual does not provide information they know to be untrue. 

D. The individual has not disclosed their password to any other individual. 
E. The appearance of the electronic signature contains, at minimum, the 

following information: 

1. The individual's full first and last name and, for staff, elected 
officials, or representatives of an entity, the individual's title; 
and 

2. A representation of the individual's signature or 
acknowledgement of digital signature in-lieu of physic a l 
signature (e.g., using an "I accept" or "I agree" check box with 
an affirmation statement; and 

3. The date and time of the signature, unless the electronic signature 
technology is self-auditing. 

 

Section 6. A document that is required by law to be signed in nonelectronic 
media may not be electronically signed. 

 
Section 7. The Clerk is authorized to make necessary corrections to this 

resolution including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener's/clerical errors, 
references, resolution numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any 
references thereto. 

 
Section 8. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately 

upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED this ___________ day of ______________________, 2020. 

 

 
Page 221 of 223



 Page 3 of 3 

APPROVED: 
 
 
  

JAMES MCNEAL 
CHAIR 

 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
  

ROBIN SCHAEFER 
CLERK 

 
 
 
FILED WITH THE CLERK:    
PASSED BY THE NPRSA BOARD:    
RESOLUTION # R-20-03 

 
Page 222 of 223



NPRSA Board 
Agenda Bill 

Item # 6 
 

       
 

TO: 
 

Chair McNeal and Members of the NPRSA Board 

FROM: 
 

Kellye Mazzoli, NPRSA Executive Director 
Carly Joerger, Levy Coordinator 
 

DATE: 
 

August 19, 2020 

SUBJECT: 
 

Future Meetings 

 
 

   ITEM  
CONSIDERATION: 

This item allows the Board an opportunity to acknowledge upcoming meetings 
and to discuss possible items for future meeting agendas. 

  
FISCAL 

IMPACTS: 
This item does not have any direct fiscal impact.  

  
ATTACHMENTS: This item does not have any attachments. 

  
RECOMMENDED  

ACTION: 
At the meeting, this item allows the Board to acknowledge the next meeting date 
and inform the Chair of requests for possible items to be placed on future 
meeting agendas. 

 
  

 
Page 223 of 223


	Amended Agenda 08.19.2020
	2-AB-Public Comment
	3A-AB-Minutes
	3A-Att-1-Minutes 2020_02_26
	3A-Att-2 Minutes 2020_06_17

	3B-AB-Vouchers
	3B-Att-1-Payment Voucher 1
	3B-Att2-Payment Voucher 2

	4-AB-Staff Reports
	5A-AB-Appointing Executive Director-R-20-01
	5A-Att-1-Resolution Appointing Executive Director R-20-01

	5B-AB-Amending 2020 Budget R-20-02
	5B-Att-1-Resolution Amending 2020 Budget R-20-02

	5C-AB-Adoption of Purchasing Policies MO-20-1
	5C-Att-1-Purchasing Policy MO-20-01
	Introduction and Code of Ethics
	Guide to Procurement
	Types of Purchases
	Supplies and Equipment
	Services
	Public Works

	Determining Total Cost
	Solicitation Methods

	The Competitive Process
	Exceptions to Competition
	Sole Source Purchase
	Emergency Purchase
	Auctions and Purchasing from Other Agencies

	Cooperative Purchasing
	Determining the Solicitation Method
	Supplies and Equipment and General Services
	Technology Software and Services
	Professional Services
	Architectural and Engineering Services
	Public Works

	Invitation to Bid Procedures
	Bid Specifications
	Advertising
	Receiving and Opening Bids
	Awarding the Contract: The Lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder

	Records Management
	Vendor Appeals

	Contract Approval and Management
	Grants Management
	Insurance
	Contract Approval
	Change Orders
	Public Works Contracts
	Prevailing Wages
	Performance Bonds and Retainage
	Retainage


	Surplus of NPRSA Property
	Appendix
	Appendix A – How to Buy Chart
	Reference Material



	5D-AB-King County Cash Agreements MO-20-02
	5D-Att-1-King County Investment Pool Policy from July 26, 2017
	5D-Att-2-King County Cash Management Services A-20-02
	5D-Att-3-King County Investment Services A-20-03

	5E-AB-Facility Upgrade Request MO-20-03
	5F-AB-Reimbursement for Outstanding Repairs MO-20-04
	5F-Att-1-Payment Voucher 3
	5F-Att-2-Memo on Capital Repairs for Reimbursement

	5G-AB-Discussion Amending Bylaws
	5G-Att-1-Current NPRSA Board Bylaws

	5H-AB-Authorizing Digital Signature-R-20-03
	5H-Att-1-Resolution Authorizing Digital Signature R-20-03

	6-AB-Future Meetings




